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MNotice of ?'l.fhmhing

NOTICE

IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 48th Annual General Meeting of FHILIP MORRIE (PAKISTAN) LIMITED will be

held an Thursday, April 26, 2018 at 3.00 p.m. at Avari Renaissance Towers Hatel, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 together
with the Directors' and Auditor's Report thereon.

2. To approve final cash dividend @ 50% i.e. Rs.5 per ordinary share af Rs.10% each as recommendead by the
Board of Directors.

o, To appoint auditor and fix thair remuneration.

The retiring auditor Mis_A_ F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants has given their consent to act as auditor
of the company for the year ending December 31, 2018,
By Order of the Board
Karachi: Apnl 4, 2018 MUSTAFA KAMAL ZUBERI
Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Apnl 17, 2018 to April 26, 2018 (both days
inclusive). Transfer received in order at the Office of the Company’s share Registrar, THE Associates (Pwt.)
Ltd., 15t Floor, 40-C, Block-6, PE.C.H.S Karachi - 75400 up to April 16, 2018 will be considerad in ime to be
eligible to attend the meeting.

ol A member who has deposited his / her shares into Central Dapository Cempany of Pakistan Limited, must
bring his / her participant's 1D number and account / sub-account number along with original Computenzed
Mational Identity Card ("CNIC") or original Passpaort at the time of attending the Meeting.

3 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his f
her proxy to attend, speak and vate instead of him / her. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors'
Resolution / Power of Atorney with specimen signatures shall be submitted with the proxy form to the Company.

4. Forms of provy to be valid must ba received at the Share Registrars offica not [ater than 48 hours bafora the
time of the meeting,

=R Member are requested to notify the Share Registrar ofthe Company promptly of any change in their addrasses,

B, Membars who have nat yet submitted photocapy of their CNIC and information ralating to Dividend Mandate
to the Company's Registrar are requested to send the same at the earliest.

T A form of praxy is enclosed harawith.



Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

Philip Morns (Pakistan) Limited Year ended December 31, 2017 (the "Company™)

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance ("CCG") contained in Rule 5.19
of the Listing Rule book of Pakistan Stock Exchange (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the Rule book™) for the
purpose of establishing a framework of good govemnance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with
the best practices of corporate govemance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1,

10.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing
minarity interest on its board of directors. At present the board includes:

Category ‘ MNames

Independent Directors Kamran Y. Mirza
Lt Gen. (R) Tarig Khan

Executive Directars Alexander Reisch

Anton Stankov

Mon-Executive Directors Sharmen Kartigasu
Ee Won Chen
Joao Manuel

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause 5.18.1.(b) of the CCG.

The directors have confirmed that none of them s serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company,

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in
payment of any loan to a banking company, a OF| or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has
been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

Mo Casual vacancy has been occurred during the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures,

The board has developed a vision | mission staterment, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers aof the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) and other executve and non-executive directors, have been taken by the board

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and the board met at least once in every
quarter. \Written notices of the board meelings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least
seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated,

The board arranged a training program offered by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, for one of
its director

The board has approved appointment of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Head of Internal Audit, including
their rermuneration and terms and conditions of appointment.



Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Govemance

11.

12,

13,

14,

13,

16,

17.

18.

19.

20,

21.

22,

23.

24,

The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed,

The financial statemeants of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the board.

The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the patbern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

The board has formed an Audit Commitiee, It comprises of three members, of whom two are non-executive
directors and the chairman of the committee is an independent director,

The meetings of the Audit Committes were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and
final results of the company and as required by the CUG. The terms of reference of the committee have been
formed and advised to the committee for compliance,

The board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members, of
whom two are non-executive directors, including the chairman of the committee,

The board has set up an effective internal audit function and personnel involved are considered suitably

qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures ofthe Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality cantrol review program of the (CAR that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and
rminor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants ("IFAC") guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the |CAP,

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide othar senices
except in accordance with the listing rule book and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

The 'closed period’, prior to the announcement of interimfMfinal results, and business decisions, which may
materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees
and stock exchange.

Material f price sensitive information has been disseminated amang all market participants at once through
stock exchange,

The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access
to inside infermation by designated senior management officer in a timaly manner and maintained proper
record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

We confirm that all gther material principles enshrned in the CCG have been complied with,

— __A’::-’J,f_,_,.a-f
-

KAMRAMN Y. MIRZA

Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chaimnan



Review Report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance
with best practices of Code of Comporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited (the Company)
for the year ended December 31, 2017 to comply with the requirements of Rule 5.19 of the Rule book of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility s
to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verfied, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review s limited primarily fo inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of vanous documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal contral systems sufficient to plan the audt and develop an effective audit approach, We are not required to
consider whether the Board's statemeant an internal control covers all risks and contrels ar to form an opinion on the

effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committes,
place before the Board for their review and approval, its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's lenath transactions and transactions which are not executed
at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechaniism \We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the
Board upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropnately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respedts, with the best practices contained in
the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017,

A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Karachi March 28, 2018 Chartered Accountants



Rewview Report by the Chairrnan on Board's Overall Performance U/S 192 of the
Compamnes Act, 2017 for yhe Year Ended December 31, 2017:

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of (the "Board”)
Fhilip Morris { Pakistan) Limited {the "Company”} has been carried out in consort with an independent third party - AF,
Farguson & Co. The purpose of this evaluation is to assess the Board's overall performance and effectiveness which
iz measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company. Areas of
improvement are duly considered and action plans accordingly framed. The Board has recently completed its annual
self-evaluation for the year ended December 31, 2017 and | report that: The overall performance of the Board measured
on the basis of approved criteria for the year was satisfactory. The overall assessment as Satisfactory is based on an
evaluation of the following integral components, which have a direct bearing on Board's role in achievement of the
Company's objectives:

1. Vision, mission and values,

Board members are familiar with the current vision, mission and values. The Board revisits the mission and vision
staternant from time to time.

2. Engagement in strategic planning:

The Board has a clear understanding of the stakeholders {(shareholders, customers, employees, vendors, Society at
large, etc.) whom the Company serves. The Board has a strategic vision of how the organization should be evaolving.

3. Diligence:

The Board members diligently performed their duties, having reviewed, discussed and approved Business Srategies,
Corporate Objectives, plans, budgets. financial statements and other reports. It received clear / concize agendas and
supparting written material in sufiicient time prior to board and committes meetings. The board met at [east once per
Cuarter to adequately discharge its responsibilities.

4, Monitoring of organization's business activities:

The Board was periodically updated with respect to the status of the Company's objectives, goals, strategies and
financial performance through regular presentations by the management, intermal / external auditors and other independent
consultants (when engaged). The Board provided appropriate direction and oversight on a timely basis.

3. Diversity and Mix:

The Board members are sufficiently diverse and each member brings a plethora of experience in various fields. The
constitution is a mix of independant and non-executive directors. The non-executive and independent directors are
equally imvalved in impartant board decisions.

6. Governance and Control Environment:

The Board has affactively put in place a transparent, proactive and robust system of govemance. Further, the Board
has sean to the implementation of an effective control environment, compliance with local as well as global best practices
and promoting ethical / fair behavior across the company.

KAMRAN ¥. MRZA
Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chairman



Directors' Report

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited, (the "Company”), | am pleased to present the
Directors’ Repaort along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017,

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The analysis of key operating results for the year ended December 31, 2017 in comparison with the previous year is
as follows

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Rs. million % Rs. million %%
Gross Turmover 30,144 100.00 40,343 100,00
Gross Profit 5078 16.85 6,021 14,92
Operating Profit 265 1.87 1,133 281
Profit before tax 476 1.58 770 1.1
Profit after tax 191 0.63 575 1.43

During 2017, the Company’s gross turnover decreased significantly by 25 28% compared to 2016, attributable to the
decline in sales volumes in the first half of the year as a result of exponential increase of the non-tax paid cigarettes
sagment ("llict Trade") which continues to impact the underlying demand for our products. At the same time, management
contained inflationary pressures with operational efficiencies and effective cost management. Other expenses for the
current year decreased, mainly due to one-off restructuring costs in 2016. Overall, the Company recorded a Profit after
tax of PKR 181 million for the year ended 2017, compared to a Profit after tax of PKR 575 million in 2016

After the change in the structure of excise in the 2017/18 federal budget and following improved enforcement efforts
to curb illicit trade, the Company saw a recovery of volumes, evident in its results for the second half of the year, The
Company is actively supporting all government policies and actions to address the issue of smuggled and non-tax paid
cigarettes,

The Company posted a profit of Rs. 181 million for the year and paid dividends in excess to the profit, which have been
set-off against reserves and eamings brought forward. The Company is reporting a loss per share of Rs.1,89 in 2017
due to payment of Interim Cash Dividend of Rs.307 millien paid to the Preference Shareholders of the Company (see
note 28 of the financial staterments). Had there been no payment of dividend to the Preference Shareholders, the
Company's earnings per share would have been Rs. 3.10. Motably, the Company also paid Interim Cash Dividend to
Ordinary Sharehclders of Rs. 615.80 million,

REGULATORY

After 35 manths of continuous engagements, the Prime Minister of Pakistan approved the decision to implement the
recommendation of the Inter-Ministenal Committee (IMC, which was formed in July 2015 to deliberate on the size of
new Graphical Health Warning - GHW) during the Cabinet meeting held on November 24, 2017, Subsequently, the
Ministry of Health issued a Statutery Regulatery Order (SRO) on December 18, 2017 to increase the Graphical Health
Warning from current 40% to at least 50% of the pack (front and back) effective from June 1, 2018, and another 10%
increase to 60% GHW on both front and back of the cigarette pack effective from June 1, 2018
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OFERATIONAL CAPACITY

In 2017, the Company invested in property, plant and equipment amounted to Rs 662 million mainly on account of
maintenance projects and continued to streamline its foctprints for the future by eliminating non-productive and obsolete
assets. These investments and initiatives reflect the Company's commitment towards the business and confidence in
its future growth,

DIVIDEND

The Board approved and paid interim cash dividend of 100% (i.e. PKR 10 per Ordinary Share) during the year to the
shareholders of the Company and at close of the current financial year the Directors are pleased to propose a final cash
dividend of 50 (i.e. PKR 5 per ordinary share) subject to the approval by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

The dividend payout ratio is 874% approximately of the net profit after tax for the year

The Board of Directors also approved and paid intenim cash dividend of 2.94% (iLe. PKR 0.294 per Preference Share)
during the year to the Preference Shareholders of the Company and at close of the current financial year the Directors
are pleased to propose a final cash dividend of 4,20 % (1.e. PKR 0.42 per Preference Share).

It is of note that the 2017 intenm cash dividend is the highest ever in the history of the company and after & challenging
years where the company conserved cash by foregoing dividends to its shareholders. The final dividend also indicates
the commitment of the board and the manageament to continue provide value to shareholders,

APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
Profit for the year has been appropriated as follows:

(Rupees in 000's)

Profit available for appropriation including profit for the Year 2017 2872054
Appropriation:
Intenm Cash Dividends:
Interim cash dividend @ PKR 10 per Ordinary Share (615,803)
Intenim cash dividend @ PKR 0.254 per Preference Share {(307,197)
Final Dividends:
Final cash dividend @ PKR 5 per Ordinary Share (307 902)
Final cash dividend @ PKR 0.420 per Preference Share (439 485)
Revenue Resemves (post dividend payment) 1,301,664

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company continues to make substantial contribution to the Federal Government's revenues. In 2017, the Company
contributed Rs.15.6 billion to the national Exchequer in the form of Federal Excise Duties, Custom Duties, Sales Tax
and Income Tax, which represents a decrease of 38.33% compared to 2016,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ("CSR")

In developing countries there is a greater need than ever for organizations, employees, communities and public officials
to work together to address social issues as effectively and efficiently as possible.
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The Company values the importance of working together with its employees and with all other stakeholders in the focus
areas of education, women empowerment, economic opportunity, and disaster relief and preparedness. In 2017, the
Company continued its collaboration with Philip Morris International Inc. and partner NGOs to achieve significant
milestones, with some CSR projects being carned forward to the first quarter of 2018, Brief details about these projects
are as follows

] The Company aims to promote fair and safe labor practices on all farms from where tobacco is sourced
Agricultural Labor Practice is a key component of Company's broader Good Agricultural Practices Program
(GAP). Under GAP, the Company has seven focus areas, including the need to curb child labor on tobacco
farms. During summer vacations, which is also the time of tobacco harvesting, Idara-e-Taleem-o-Agahi (ITA- a
lecal NGO) organizes sumimer camps in local govemnment schools, The main purpose of surmmer camps is to
prevent farmers’ children from working in the tobacco farms during their summer holidays, In 2017, the Summar
School Program was conducted in 21 schools in two districts of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa province (KPK), catering
to mare than 1700 students. Under this program, fun-based learming activities and Literature Festivals were also
held to promote the reading habit among children. Further, schod! upgradation projacts are being undertaken in
Kotri, Sahiwal and KPK to uplift their infrastructure and install solar panels,

L] Providing basic medical care and health awareness to mare than 1800 families through community mobilization
by Lady Health Workers, medical camps and health awareness sessions in Kotri, Sahiwal and 2 districts of KPK

& Installation of 32 hand purmps and filtration plants for clean drinking water, dissemination of hygiene Kits and
hygiene awareness community sessions in 2 districts of KPK, Sahiwal and Hafizabad in Punjab, and Kot in
Sindh, serving more than 3000 community mambears

#®  Reaching out to domestic violence affected fernale victims by funding reconstructive surgeries for 48, along with
peycho-social support and vocational trainings for them across Pakistan,

] Enhance the socio-econamic inclusion of 300 women with disabilities by forming community-based groups,
building capacity of stakeholder groups for advocacy of their rights and sensilizing general community on issues
faced by these women

The Company in committed to continuing with its sustainable charitable programs to benefit lacal communities and
increase employeas’ engagement in various initiatives in the coming years.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The Company i committed to manufacture and deliver high quality tobacco products by adhering to its established
and internationally recognized quality, environment, health and safety procedures and standards. Through these
procedures, Company seaks to meet the expectations of its adult smokers and retain their loyvalty through continuous
improvement and excallence in its products.

The Company conducts business with utmaost care for the environment and recognizes that the health and safaty of
its employees is a core panciple and value of the business. The polices and practices are in place o prevent occupational
injuries, ilinesses and foreseeable hazards. Both manufacturing sites at Kotri and Sahiwal received an "Excellent” rating
(6/6) from Bureau Veritas and a “Very Good" rating (4/6) for the threshing site in Mardan after being audited on the |50
14001 (environment) and OHSAS 18001 (health & safety) standards. 2017 was the year when the company started
focusing on health and safety concerns beyond operations as well, this means all our sales offices, external warehouses,
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head offices and fleet were formally made part of the Environment Health and Safety scope. The Company exceeded
its targets for minimizing injuries and accidents both in the operations and in the fleet and is commitied to bring in
continuous improvement throughout the organization

INVESTMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCE

To engage employees and enable them to deliver their best through an inclusive environment, the company continually
invests in talent through development platiorms, comprehensive learning programs, cross-functional exposure and
international experiences. The company strives to foster a culture that places people at the core of everything it does,
celebrates diversity, is forward looking, and provides equal opportunity to all to help the company achieve its objectives
and long-term goals.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors of the Company are aware of their respansibilities under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2017 (Code) issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Your Company has taken all
necessary steps to ensure Good Corporate Governance and full compliance of the Code,

As required under the Code, the Directors are pleased to report that:

®  The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company represent fairly its state of affairs, the
resulis of its operations, cash flows and changes in its equity,

& Proper books of accounts of the Company have been mamtamed;

@  Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of the financial statements. Accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

® Approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of all financial
statements;

@  The Company's system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and is
continuously reviewed,

®  There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

®  There has been no material departure from the best practices of carporate governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations;

® A summary of the key financial highlights for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the Company as of
December 31, 2017 and for the last six financial years are set out on pages 19, and

®  Information about taxes and levies is given in the corresponding netes in the financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of adeguate internal controls
and procedures. Management's statement of internal contrals forms part of this Annual Report

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Company is responsible for publishing a Statement of Compliance. Statement of Compliance forms part of this
Annual Report.

INVESTMENTS IN RETIREMENT FUNDS

The value of investments made by the employees’ retirement funds operated by the Company as per their audited
financial statements is as follows:

Rs. Million
Pravident Fund G628 (Financial statements audited as of December 31, 2018)
Gratuity Fund 500 (Financial statements audited as of December 31, 2016)

HOLDING COMPANY

Incorporated in the Metherlands, FPhilip Morris Investments BV, is the holding company having 77.65% of shares in the
Company.

Fhilip Morris Brands SARL is the associate company having 209% of shares in the Company

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The term of the Board ended on September 26, 2017 and the Election of Directors was held on the same date, re-
electing all previous members of the Board, However in February, 2018, Ms. Hannah Heekyung Yun resigned and Mr.

Sharmen Karthigasu joined the Board as non-executive director.

Furthermore, during March 2018, Ms. Faiza Kapadia Raffay resigned and Mr. Mustafa Kamal Zuberi joined as a Company
Secretary.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Election of Directors was held during the year on September 26, 2017. Subsequently, Company's Audit Committee
and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were formed.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

The Board of Directors is comprised of seven Directors, of which two are independent Directors, three are non-executive
Directors and two are executive director(s). The Board consists of 6 Male Directors and 1 Female Director.
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Dwring 2017, the Board of Directors (the "Board") held 5 meetings. The attendance of Directors in those meetings is
documented and provided here under

Mame of Directors Mo, of meetings attended
Kamran Y. Mirza
Alexander Reisch

Lt Gen. (R) Tarig Khan
Anton Stankov

Ee Won Chen

Hannah Heekyung Yun
Joao Manuel -

B oOn v oW

Leaves of absence were granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee performs according to the terms of reference determined by the Board of the Company and which
conform to the requirements of the Code issued by the SECP

The Audit Committee comprises of three members, of which one is an independent Director and two are non-executive
Directors,

As at year end 2017 the following Directors were acting as members of the Audit Committee;

1 Lt Gen, (R) Tarig kKhan
2.  Hannah Heakyung Yun
3. EeWon Chen

& total of four meetings were held during the year. The attendance of Directors in those meetings is documented and
pravided here under

Mame of Directors No. of meetings attended
Lt Gen. (R) Tarig Khan 4
Ee Won Chen 3
Hannah Heekyung Yun 4

Leave of absence was granted to the Director who could not attend the Audit Committee meeting.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ("HR&R")

Current HRER Committee consists of three members, comprising of a non-executive, Independent and executive director
As at year end 2017 the following Directors were acting as members of the HR&R Committee

1. Joao Manuel
2 Hannah Heekyung Yun
3 Alexander Reisch

During 2017, no meeting has been hekd by the HR&R Committes.
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EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

The Company has appointed A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants as the consultant to compile and present
a written report on the results of Board's Perfformance Evaluation Exercise.

TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

During the year, the board arranged a training program offered by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, for
one of its director

FATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding of the Company as of December 31, 2017 is included further in this Annual Report as per
the requirements of the Code.

AUDITORS

The current external auditors, A. F Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as external auditors for the year ending
December 31, 2018. Members are requested to appoint them as auditors and validate their remuneration

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company has adopted or applied new accounting standards, amendments to approved standards and new interpretations
as applicable during 2017. Details of those are provided in the Motes to the Financial Statements section 2.2.1.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company is a fully integrated affiliate of Philip Morrs International Inc. and as such will continue to benefit from
global resources and expertise to help further improve its effectiveness and long term sustainability and profitability,

The Company’s Directors and Management continue fo be focused on capitalizing the level playing field that introduction
of the 2017 Finance Act fiscal structure has offered to deliver long term shareholder value through improvements in
all aspacts of the Company’s operations. This includes, and is not limited to, innovative product offering, strengthening
brand portfolio and enhanced product quality, optimization of manufacturing practices and facilities, development of
human resources and continued emphasis on effectively managing the cost base.

The company launched L&M in Q417 as a value offering to adult smokers and a better alternate to loveprice ilicit cigarettes.
While still early days, we see promising results in the cities where we have expanded the distribution of this brand

The Company aims to remain keenly focused on conserving cash to give reasonable dividends to its shareholders.
However, the future remains challenging and highly dependent on the continuation of the excise tax refarms that were
implemented in June 2017,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to take this opportunity to thank all the Company's employees for their efforts, dedication, commitment
and support in 2017
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The Board of Directors would also like to extend its appreciation to all #s businass partners such as distributors, supplisrs,
shareholders and other institutions for their trust in the managament of the Company.

On behalf of the Beard of Directors

o el //7
ettty
KAMRAN Y. NIRZA Alexander Reisch
Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi, March 15, 2018
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Pattern of Holding of Shares

AS AT DECEMEER 31, 2017
INCORPORATION NUMBER - 0002832

NUMBER OF SHAREHDLIJEHS‘ SHAREHOLDING [ ARG
{Ordinary Shareholders)
‘ From - To l

gea 1 100 18,930
330 101 500 85,260
118 501 1000 84 B02
179 1001 5000 348 328
20 S001 10000 137 560
2 10001 15000 22337
3 15001 20000 48 489
1 20001 25000 21,208
1 25001 30000 28915
1 45001 50000 46 255
1 &00001 E05000 €03,079
i 12315001 12320000 12,316 060
1 47500001 s0000000 47 819,350

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS (Ordinary Shareholders) SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minar children 76 0.00%
Associated Companies, undertakings and related paries 60,135 410 a7 .65%
MIT and ICP 58 0.00%
Banks, Development Financial Instiluliens, Moen-Banking Financial |nstitutions 3,840 0.01%
Insurance Companies 21,206 0.03%
Sharehaolders holding 5% and above 60,135 410 a7 65%
Zeneral Public (Local) 155 545 1.23%
Cihers 664,106 1.08%

Mote: some of the shareholders are reflecied in more than one category

Karachi: March 15, 2018

J'_,ibtj?‘fﬁ
-

KANRAN Y. MIRZA
Chairman
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS (Ordinary Shareholders) MO. OF SHARES HELD

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED PARTIES

PHILIP MORRIS INVESTMENTS B.V. 47,819,350
PHILIP MORRIS BRANDS SARL 12,316,060
£0,135,410

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE(S) AMD MINOR CHILDREMN

MR. KAMRAN Y. MIRZA
LT.GEN.(R) TARIC KHAN
ME. ANTOM STANKOY
MR. ALEXAMDER REISCH
MR. JOAQ MAMUEL

MS. HEE KYUNG YUMN
MS. EE WON CHEN

|+ v v andd

78

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPAMIES AND CORPORATION, BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS,
NON-BANKING FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, MODARBAS AND PENSION
FUNDS

INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 58
HABIB BANK LIMITED 132
MCB BANK LIMITED 3,208
CDC-TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 580
PAKISTAN REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 21,208

25,204
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE VOTING RIGHTS IN THE LISTED COMPANY

PHILIP MORRIS INVESTMENTS BV, 47,819,350
PHILIP MORRIS ERANDS SARL 12,316,060
60,135,410
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Pattern of Shareholding - (Preterence Shareholder)

CATEGORIES OF PREFERENCE EHAREHOLDERS

DETAILS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

PREFEREMCE SHARES HELD

PERCEMTAGE

Holding and Associated Companies

1,046 400,000

100.00%

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDING AS PER REQUIREMENTS OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE

GOVERMNANCE

CATEGORIES OF PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS

ASSOCIATED COMPAMIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED PARTIES

PHILIF MORRIS INVNESTMENTS B.V. 832,097,280
PHILIP MORRIS BRANDS SARL 214,302,720
1,046.400,000
PATTERN OF HOLDING OF PREFERENCE SHARES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
INCORPORATION MUMBER - 0002232
NUMBER OF PREFERENCE SHAREHOLDERS PREFEREMNCE SHAREHOLDING PREFERENGE
FROM TO SHARES HELD
1 1 250,000,000 214,302 720
1 250,000,001 850,000,000 832,087,280

EAMRAN ¥. MIRZA

Chaiman




Financial Highlights for Last Six Years

19

Share Capial
- Ordinary shares
- Preference shares

Transaclion cost on issuance of Preference
- net of tax

Reserves

Share Holders' Equity

TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED

Fixed assets

Investment in a subsidiary company
Long-lerm loans, deposits & prepayments
Defemred taxation

Working capital

TOTAL ASSETS

Turnover

Praft f{Loss) before tax
Praft f{Loss) after tax
Dividends declared (Cash)

Break-up value of shares
Met Eaming / (Loss) per Share

Year ended December 31

2017 2016 2015 2014 3 || s
|
{Rupees In thousand)
615803 | 615803 || 615803 [ 615003 615803( 61580
10,464,000 || 10,464,000 . - . :
(@3em)| (339N
1855384 || 2,544,144 || 2033524 || 3373047 | 4,677,776 | 5337262
12,901,276 13,590,036 2,849,327 3988850 5493579 5,963,085
12,901,276 13,500,036 2,649,327 3988850 5493579 5,853,085
7818958 | 8517.170 || 8048391 || 7416512 | 6002926 | 5389,680
1 1 1 1 1 1
45825 | 3m7e2| ara4s2 | 36760 | 41101 41347
678585 | 761323 937,354 || save1s || amogre | g7
4357907 4271780 (6373871) (3992038) (1,830427) 515170
12,901,276 13,500,036 2,840,327 3888850 5493579 5,053,085
20,143,008 | 40,342,161 || 40,157,144 [ 38,045,603 | 25,984,801 | 38852,536
476315 || 769,838 || (1,676,939) || (1,513,269) | (708,860) (622,042)
191,008 || 675157 || (1,315,008) | (1,482,455) | (441,458) | (574,384)
{923,000} - - - | -
(Rupees)
20950 | 22069 43.02 64.77 89.21 96,67
1.89) | s79| (2135 (e0n| @] (933
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Philip Mormis (Pakistan) Limited as at December 31, 2017 and the
related profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming
part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the above said stateaments in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Our responsibility 1= to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. W
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we repart that-

{a) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1084,

(B)  InSur opinon-

(1) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreameant with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company'’s business; and

(i)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance
with the objects of the company;

(c) in our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash fiow statement together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information
required by the Companies Crdinance, 1884, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the company's affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of the profit, ts changes in equity and cash
flowes for the year then ended; and

(d) inour opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1880 (XVIIl of 1880) was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: March 28, 2018 Audit Engagement Pariner: Khurshid Hasan



Balance Sheet

AS AT DECEMEER 31, 2017

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)
ASSETS
MNON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed as=ats
- Property, plant and asquipmeant 3 T.798,935 B487 287
Intangibles 3 20,023 28 909
T.218.0%8 E5ITATO
Iy esimert in a subsidiary company 5 1 1
Long termn deposits and prepayments & 45,826 20,762
Do ferred Baxation T £78,686 761323
B543 368 - Bl b1
CURRENT ASSETS
Slores and sparaes = nel 8 238,680 378,224
Sk in frade = el g 6,204,581 r.273 187
Trade dabls - net o 36,458 1,223
Advances 11 35,180 33,278
Frapayments 63,715 92878
Other récsivables 12 b b ] 210 304
Inecatie B = ned 614,001 E18. 775
Staff retirement banefits 13 97,048 31 538
Cash and bank balances 14 266,100 108 0593
7,868 482 B 708,755
TOTAL ASSETS 16,401 851 18,027 01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EHARE CAFITAL AND RESERVES
Authonsed capital 15 12,000,000 i2 000 000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
= Orinary shares 12 615,803 15 g0k
= Preference shares 15 10,454,000 0 AC4 D0
11,078,803 11,0089 803
Transacion cost on igsuance of preference shames = net of lax {33,911) (33811
11,045,852 17045 852
Resarvés 5,230 330 6,137 315
Unapprapriated [nss {3,374 846} (3,593,171}
TOTAL EQUITY 12 501,276 13,590 035
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term bormowings 17 - 1,338 55T
Trade and ofher pavables 18 3155873 2643 380
Accrued mark=up on shiod berm Bormowings 3 r.24a
Sales tax and excse duly pavable 344,669 447 8048
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3500575 4 438 979
TOTAL EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES 16,401,851 1802701
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 18

The annexad nalas from 11047 form aningsgral par of these inancal statements

KAMRAN Y. MIRZA ALEXANDER REISCH ANTON STANKOV
Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chairman Chief Executive Chief Financial Dfficer
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Profit and Loss Account

Tumover - net
Cost of salas
Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expansas
Administrative expansas

Other expenseas

Other incamea

Operating proft

Finance cost and bank charges
Profit befora taxation

Taxation
Praofit afer taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax
itarm that will nof be raclassified fo proff or loss

Remeasurament income / (expanse) relating ta

staff retirement banafits

- Current tax

- Deferrad tax

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

{Loss) / Earnings per share - basic and
diluted (after adjustment of preferance dovidand)

The annexed notes fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

J-r'_ "'J?’fg
i

KAMRAN Y. MRZA
Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chairman

FOF. THE YEAE. ENDED DECEMEEER 31, 2017
Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)
20 13,966,525 14213338
21 8,888 275 8,192 406
5,078,250 6,020,932
22 2,926 658 2941858
23 1,355,237 1,352,482
24 306,448 783 481
25 (165,210) (189,480)
4,513,133 4,880 341
565,117 1,132,591
26 88,802 362,703
476,315 760,888
27 285,307 194,731
191,008 576,157
13 25,084 (92.439)
(7,525) | 56,348
- | (28,552
(7,525) 27,796
17,559 {64,643)
208,567 510,514
(Rupees)
28 (1.89) 8.79
o
fﬁr!gﬁ'#?’@fﬁ_
ALEXANDER REISCH ANTON STANK OV
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



Statement of Chﬂngf:s in Equity

Balance as ot January 1, 216
Transacfions will owners

Issuance of preference shams
Trarsaction cost on issuance of
preference shares - net of ta

Share-hased payment
- HpErse

= mecharge

(nate 24.17)

Tl comgrefEnge meome

Profit after tacabon for the vear
erded December 31, 2018

Olither comprehensroe loss
fer thie year

Balance as at December 31, 2016
Trenssciiomwilh owners

Ingerim cash desdend for the year
ended December 31, 2017
(rote 153)

- Reversal of unchemed dvidend
[rite 18 .5)

Stmrebmsed payment
- RpErag

= recharge

(rote 2.4 17}

Tofal conorehansid Mcane

Profit aftér tacatban for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Cther comprehensna intome
Far the year

Balanca as at December 3, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

-ﬁﬂ =l i cimd Unappropristed Tofal
LI Eapital onissEneE N s ye For share of mafl Hisminw=s liss
luﬁ::::ﬂ (=] redrrrnn
- -l o e
{Ruipesies in thodsand)
B15803 f.347 000 6307 (1515I0) 201857 (41BBAM]  2EABENT
10454 000 . . i . . 10,464,000
(33,911) 3 5 : p {33.81)
£ : 18418 : 18418 18418
R AR, (18217 = {183 (8317
Q44000 (L) - 108 . (] 10,430,195
= . = 515157 575,157
[pa6A3))  (Ba5aa) o (B4.B43)
(R VYK =k R 5T AL Y AT
S1580% 10484000  (FE11) 6347000 649 (210,183) G,137.315 (3.583,171) 13,580,096
- || o3 000) - {523 ,000) (823,000)
: 5 ¥ 2T 77
£ : 21,008 : 008 21,008
| S ] = A2 550 o (3553
[EEETIN] [1.583) {5 544 2N (T
181,008 181,008
5 - 8 17558 17,559 . 17,558
2 Z 3 17559 17.559 191,008 08567
815803 104B4000 (BO11) 542000 4054 (108624) 5230330 (3.374.048) 12801276

The armesed nates from 1o 41 femm an inbegral gk of these fnancal sttements

Karachi: March 15, 2018

KAMRAN Y. MIRZA ALEXANDER REISCH
Chairman Chief Executive

ANTON STANKOV
Chief Financial QOfficer



Cash Flow Statement

FOR. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2017
Mote 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated fram oparations 32 3,320,143 3,425 856
S1aff retirement graluity paid [(73.491) (73,300)
Finance cost paid (734902) (402.834)
Praofit received on deposil accounis 15,220 8,147
Income taxes (paid) / refund recaived (245,320) 243 496
Long lerm deposits and prepayments [6,063) (2,310)
Ameunt deposited with a commercial bank as security - (18.861)
Mel cash generated from operating activities 2,934,997 3,178,184

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (662,156) {1.451,653)
Acguisilion of intangibles (4, Git) (18,502)
Proceeds from disposal of items of propery, plant and equipment 129,453 77,064
Met cash used in invasting activities (537,363) (1,392,171}

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid {911,420} -

Preference shares issued - 10 464 000
Transaction cost on isswance of preference shares paid - (48,493}
Sher lerm loans oblained 27,087,000 13582400
Repayment of short term leans (27, 006,650) tiﬂ,ﬂ‘li,ﬁﬂﬂ}
Mel cash generated (used in) / from financing activilies {911,070} 3,085 407
Mel increase in cash and cash equivalents dunng the year 1,486,564 4 871430
Cash and cash equivalents ai ihe beginning of the year (1,248,325) (6,120,755)
Casgh and cash equivalents al the end of the vear - 237,239 (1,249 325)

The annexed noles from 1 fo 41 form an inlegral part of these financial slalemenis.

= i — ,,f"r
=Tl ¢ ,éw/?@f /é%

KAMRAN Y. MRZA ALEXANDER REISCH ANTON STANKOV
Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chairman Chief Executive Chief Financial QOfficer
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 51, 2017
THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Philip Mormris (Pakistan) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on February 10, 1968 as a public
limited company under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The Company is listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal actreity of the Company is the manufacturing and sale of cigarettes and
tobacco products. Its registered office is situated at 18th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City, HC - 3, Block
4, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

The Company is a subsidiary of Philip Marris International Inc., (the ultimate parent) through Philip Marris
Investments BV, (the parent company) and Philip Morris Brands S.a.rl

In view of exemption granted by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the SECP) vide its letter
Mo, EMD/233/619/2002/658 dated February 10, 2017 from the requirement of section 237(8) of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1954 (the Ordinance), the consolidated financial statements of the group comprising the
Company and its subsidiary, Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited, have not been prepared. The
exemption is, however, subject to the condition that any material and relevant details of the aforesaid subsidiary
shall be prominently disclosed by the Company.

In accordance with the requirements of the said exemption, financial highlights of the subsidiary are stated in note 5,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise specifically
stated,

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. As per the requirements of circular No. CLOYCCDVPR (112017 dated July
20, 2017 and circular Mo, 23 of 2017 dated October 4, 2017 issued by the SECP, companies where the financial
year closes on of before December 31, 2017 shall prapare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884 Accordingly, approved accounting standards comprise
of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board as are notified under the Ordinance, provisions of and directives issued under the Ordinance, |n case
requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Ordinance prevail,

Initial application of new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations.
Amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year ended December 31, 2017

Amendment to IAS 7 "Statement of cash flows': This amendment requires disclosure to explain changes in liabilities
for which cash flows have been, classified as financing activities in the cash flow statement. The amendment only
covers balance sheet items for which cash flows are classified as financing activities, |n case other items are
included within the reconciliation, the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are identified separately.
A reconciliation of the opening to closing balance is not specifically required but instead the information can be
provided in other ways. In the first year of adoption, comparatve information need not be provided. This amendment
has resulted an additonal disclosure (i.e. note 17.2) in thesa financial statements.
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The other amendments to the approved accounting standards which became effective during the year ended
December 31, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any signincant impact on the Company's financial
reporting and operations and are therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are effective for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

There are certain new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards that will become effective
for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on ar after January 1, 2018, However, the amendments
will not have a significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed
in thesa financial statements. During the current year, the SECP has adopted IFRS 2 'Financial instruments’ and
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Customers’, the impacts of which on the Company's future financial statements are being
assessed to be minimal, Further, cenain new standards are yet to be adopted by the SECP.

In addition to the faregoing, the Companies Act, 2017 which is not effective on these financial statements has
added certain disclosure requiremants which will be applicable to future accounting penods,

Critical accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting palicies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
an histonical expenence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following estimates and judgments which are significant to these financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful Ives are based on the recommendation of the Company's
technical teams. Further, the Company reviews the external and internal indicators for possible impairment of
assets on an annual basis.

Stock in trade

Assumptions and estimates used in writing down tems of stock in trade to their net realisable value (note 9). MNet
realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes payable by the Company, management considers current income tax
law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain cases issued in the past Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax provision
in the period of which the final outcome is determined.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets may be utilised,
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Staft retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 13 are used for the valuation of present value of defined benefit
obligations and fair value of plan assets,

Equity settled share-based payment plans

Estimates with respect to the number of employees who are expected to receive the ultimate parent's shares
upon satisfaction of the vesting conditions.

Provisions

Provisions are based on management's best estimate. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect
the carrying amaounts of the provisions with a corresponding affect on the profit and loss account of the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment
(i) Operating property, plant and equipment

Operating property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, except for freehold land which is stated at historical cost.

Assets having cost exceeding the minimum threshold as determined by the management are capitalised.
All other assets are charged to income in the year when acquired,

Depreciation is charged to income applying the straight-line method so as to write off the historical cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates stated in note 3.1 below. Depreciation on additions
is charged from the month in which the asset is put to use and on disposals up to the month the asset is
no longer in use. Assets’ residual values and useful lives are annually reviewed, and adjusted, if material.

Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects it would receive currently for
an item of property, plant and equipment if it was already of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life based on the prevailing market prices of similar assets already at the end of their useful lives.

Useful Iives are determined by the management based on the expected usage of assets, physical wear and
tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets and other
similar factors

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
that an asset may be impaired and camrying values may not be recovered. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assat or cash generating unit is
written down to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the
greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements, if any, are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Company.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gans and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are charged to income.

(i) Capital work-in-progress

All expenditures, connected with specific assets, incurred during instaliation and construction period are
carned under this head. Capital work-in-progress is transferred to specific assets as and when these assets
become available for use.

() Major spare parts and stand-by equipments

Major spare parts and stand by equipment gualifying as property, plant and equipment and having cost
exceeding the minimum threshold as determined by management are classified as property, plant and
equipment. Transfers are made to the relevant categories of operating property, plant and equipment as and
when these assets are consumed

Intangible

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of the intangible asset {i.e. computer softwares)
includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

Intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Amortsation
is charged over the estimated useful |ife of the asset on a systematic basis applying the straight ine method at
the rates of 20% to 33.33%.

Useful lives of intangible are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if the impact on amortisation s
significant

The camying amount of the intangible is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment |osses are charged to income for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversal of impairment losses
are also charged to income, however, it is restricted to the original cost of the asset

Investments
{1} Investment in 2 subsikiary company

Investment in a subsidiary company is recognised when the Company has established control over the
investee company. Investment in subsidiary company is stated at cost less impairment, if any.

(i} Otherinvestments

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
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(a) Investments ‘at far value through profit or loss”
& Financial instruments 'held-for-trading’

These include financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments) acquired principally
for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or dealers’ margins or
are securties included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit making exists.

@ Financial instruments designated "at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition’

Thesa include investments that are designated as investments at fair value through profit or loss
upon intial recognition,

(b) Held to maturity
These are securities acquired by the Company with the intention and ability to hald them up to maturity,
(c} Loans and receivables originated by the enterprise

These are non-derivative financial assets with fived or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market,

(d) Available for zale

These are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit or less, (b) held-to-matunty investments,
or {¢) loans and receivables.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured intially at fair value (transaction price) plus, in case of a financial asset or
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss', transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial iabilty, Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ are expensed immediately.

Subsequent to initial recognition, instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' and
‘avaitable for sale’ are measured at fair value, Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss' are recognised in the profit and loss for the year. Changes in the fair
value of instruments classified as "available for sale’ are recognised in "other comprehensive income' until
derecognised or impaired, when the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in unrealised surplus on
revaluation of investments are included in the profit / loss for the year,

Financial assets classified as "loans and receivables’ and "held to maturity’ are carmied at amortised cost using
the effective yield method

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost using
the affective yield method,
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244

245

2486

247

248
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The Company follows trade date accounting for purchase and sale of investments.
Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realisable value, except for items in
transit which are stated at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon. Provisions are made for slow
moving Items where necessary to bring them down to approximate net realisable value and is charged to income.

Met realisable value signifies the astimated saelling price in the ordinary course of business less the astimated
cost of completion and costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale

Stock in trade
Stock in trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of raw materials include procurement expenses except raw materials in bonded warehouse and in transit,
which are stated at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon,

Cost of redried tobacco includes procurement expenses and overheads incurred on redrying of the tobacco leaf.
Cost in relation to finished goods and work-in-process includes proportionate production overheads,

Cost in relation to trading goods is valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realisable value, except
for tems in transit which are stated at invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon.

Trade debls and cther recenvables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an estimated
allowance made for doubtful receivables based on a review of the cutstanding amounts at end of the year.
Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Trade and other payables

Liabilites for trade and other amounts payable are camed at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for the goods and services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent assels

Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-ccourrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
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the centrol of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised until their realisation become virually certain.

2.4.10 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

there is a possible obligation that arses from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurmrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company, or

there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

2411 Taxation

0

(w)

Current

Provision for current taxation is the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation or
alternative corporate tax computed on accounting income or minimum t&x on turnover, whichever is higher,
and taxes paid / payable on final tax basis, after taking into account tax credits available, if any. The charge
for the current tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arisa from the
assessments made / finalised during the year

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between
the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets may be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Uinrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheat date and are recognised to the extent that it has becorme probable that future taxable
profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is utilised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date.

2412 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried on the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow staterment,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, cheques in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
ather short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, running finance under
mark-up arrangaments and short term loans which form an integral part of the Company's cash management.
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2.4.13 Bormowing costs

The Company capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset as a part of that asset, All other borrowing costs are charged to income

2414 Revenue recognition

#® Sales are recognised either upon shipment or delivery of goods when title and risk of loss pass on to
the customer,

® |ncome on investments and return on deposits are accounted for on an accrual basis.
Gross turnover is disclosed net off sales allowances.

2.4.15 Staff retirement benefits
The Company operates:

(a) an approved contributory provident fund for all permanent employees for which contributions are charged
to incomne for the year, and

() an approved funded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees. Contribution are made to this
scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and recommendations. The actuarial valuation is performed using
the Project Unit Credit Method.

Staff retirement benefits are payable to staff on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under thesa
schemes. The benefit payments are made from a frustee - administered fund (Philip Morris (Pakistan) Employees
Gratuity Fund Trust)

All actuanal gains and losses (i.e. ‘remeasurements’) are recognised in ‘Cther comprehensive income' as they ocour,
2.4.16 Compensated absences

The Company provides for its estimated liability towards leaves accumulated by employees on an accreal basis
using current salary levels, As the component of liability invoheed is not material, the Company does not perform
an actuarial valuation for this liability

2417 Equity-seitied share-based payment plans

The Company recognises as expense the services acquired over the vesting penod and the corresponding
increase in equity (as contribution from the ulttmate parent) at far value of the ultimate parent's shares at the
grant date under Time-vested Share Plar’. Under the plan the ultimate parent (Le. Philip Moris International |nc.)
grants rights of its shares to certain employees ! executives of the Company that vest over a period of three years
from the grant date. In the event the Company is recharged by the ultimate parent the equity is reduced to the
extent of such recharge.

2.4.18 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistan Rupees (i.e. the functional currency) using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary asseis and liabiliies in forelgn currencies are translated
into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, Foreign exchange gains and losses
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resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are charged to income,

2418 Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.

2420 Financial assets and liabilities

Fimancial assets and habilibes carried on the balance sheet include recernables, cash and bank balances and
trade creditors. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with each item.

Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument Financial assets and liabilties are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable
right to offzet and it intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneoushy,

2421 Dividend and appropriation to resenves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the Company's financial staterments in the period in
which these are approved,

2422 Segment reporting

The Company operates predominantly in Pakistan and in one main industny — cigarette manufacture. The activities
comprse the manufacture, distribution and sale of cigarettes and other tobacco products.

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating property, plant and equipment 31 T.260,775 7,657 261
Capital work-in-progress (CWIF) 3.2 538,160 B22576
Major capital spares and stand-by equipment - 7424

7,798,935 8,487 261
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3.1.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Note 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Purchases, redrying and related expenses 66,026 67,507
Manufacturing expenses 774,021 589,533
Distribution and marketing expenses 179,811 114,958
Administrative expenses 80,172 124,746

1,100,030 896,744

Details of items of property, plant and equipment disposed of during the year and having net book value of more
than Rs 50,000 either individually or in aggregate are given in note 36.

During the year, the Company has identified certain items of property, plant and equipment from which further
economic benefits are no longer expected to be derived i.e. the Company neither intends to utilise nor can it
dispose of the same in accordance with its policy except as scrap material. Accordingly, such assets having a
cost and net book value of Rs 255.503 million (2016: Rs 162.753 million) and Rs 83.765 million (2016: Rs 60.644
million) respectively have been written down to Rs Nil in these financial statements as at December 31, 2017.

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works 14,190 22,886
Plant and machinery 163,683 324,384
Power and other installations 202,285 295,340
Furniture and fixtures 73,385 96,727
Computer equipment's pending installations 7,137 51,965
Advance to suppliers and contractors 77,480 31,274

538,160 822,576

The movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Balance as at beginning of the year 822,576 1,650,223
Additions during the year
- Civil works 166,487 177,293
- Plant and machinery 127,212 892,575
- Power and other installations 48,079 109,984
- Furniture and fixtures 26,622 61,008
- Computer equipment pending installations 235,912 184,649
- Advance to suppliers and contractors 57,844 25,451
662,156 1,450,960

Transfers to operating property, plant and equipment
- Buildings on freehold land 124,551 233,182
- Leasehold improvements 50,632 31,302
- Plant and machinery 287,913 1,669,324
- Furniture and fixtures 46,328 18,320
- Office equipment 1,734 12,901
- Vehicles 9,904 18,272
- Power and other installations 135,377 101,301
- Computer equipment 280,740 194,005

937,179 2,278,607
Balance Carried forward 547,553 822,576
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2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Balance brought forward 547,553 822,576

Items written off during the year
- Power and other installations 5,757
- Furniture and fixtures 3,636

9,393
Balance at the end of the year 538,160

INTANGIBLES
Computer software

At January 1

Cost 71,741 53,239
Accumulated amortisation (41,832) (30,531)
Net book value 29,909 22,708

Year ended December 31
Additions 4,660 18,502

Write offs
Cost (2,847)
Accumulated amortisation 1,584

(1,263)

Amortisation for the year . (13,283) (11,301)
Net book value as at December 31 20,023 29,909

At December 31

Cost 73,554 71,741
Accumulated amortisation (53,531) (41,832)
Net book value 20,023 29,909

Amortisation for the year relates to purchases, redrying and related expenses (note 21.1), manufacturing expenses
(note 21.2), distribution and marketing expenses (note 22) and administrative expenses (note 23).

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

This represents the cost of 103 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each in Laksonpremier Tobacco Company
(Private) Limited. Out of the 103 shares, two shares are in the name of the nominees. The profit and loss account
of the subsidiary company for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to Rs Nil resulting in an accumulated
loss of Rs 1,030 as at that date. The net assets of the subsidiary company as at December 31, 2017 amounted
to Rs Nil, in accordance with the audited financial statements for the year then ended.
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The auditors of the subsidiary company have expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements
of the subsidiary company for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The audited financial statements of the subsidiary company are available for inspection at the Company's registered
office and are available to the members on request without any cost.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Deposits 45,825 36,682
Prepayments - 3,080
45,825 39,762

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences:
Accrual for employees compensated absences 2,472 2,131
Unutilised tax losses and credit 1,336,497 1,448,262
Provision for spares 25,149 20,513
Provision for obsolete stocks 11,400 15,609
Provision for doubtful debts 834 809
Worker's welfare fund 8,276 -
1,384,628 1,487,324

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences:
Tax depreciation allowance (706,043) (726,001)
Deferred tax asset 678,585 761,323

The movement in temporary differences is as follows:

Balance  Recognised Recognised Balanceas Recognised Recognised Balance as at

as at in profitand inother 4 in profitand in other December 31,
comprehensive comprehensive

January  loss account jpcome December loss income 2017

1, 2016 31, 2016 account

Rupees in '000

Deferred tax debits:
Accrual for employees

compensated absences 2,696 (565) - 2,131 341 - 2,472
Amortisation of intangibles 99 (99) - - - - -
Unutilized tax losses and credit 1,457,432 19,382 (28,552) 1,448,262 (111,765) - 1,336,497
Provision for spares 49,283 (28,770) - 20,513 4,636 - 25,149
Provision for obsolete stocks 12,845 2,764 - 15,609 (4,209) - 11,400
Provision for doubtful debts 813 4) - 809 25 - 834
Worker's welfare fund - - - - 8,276 - 8,276
1,523,168 (7,292) (28,552) 1,487,324 (102,696) - 1,384,628

Deferred tax Credits:
Tax depreciation allowance (585,814) (140,187) - (726,001) 19,958 - (706,043)

937,354 (147,479) (28,552) 761,323 (82,738) - 678,585
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The applicable income tax rate for the current year was reduced from 31% to 30% through the Finance Act, 2017.
Further, income tax rate for future years have been enacted for the years ending on December 31, 2018 and
thereafter at 30%.

The accumulated tax losses and credits of the Company as at December 31, 2017 aggregated Rs 4,454.990
million (2016: Rs 4,909.884 million) and Rs Nil (2016: Rs 19.485) respectively, in respect of which the Company
has recognised deferred tax asset amounting to Rs 1,336.497 million (2016: Rs 1,448.262 million). The existing
unutilised tax losses represent tax depreciation and amortisation, which can be utilised for an indefinite period
against future profits. The Company carries out periodic assessments to determine if the Company would be able
to set off these charges against the taxable profits in future years. The amount of this benefit has been determined
based on the projected taxable profits of the Company for future years. The determination of projected taxable
profits are most sensitive to certain key assumptions such as volume of cigarettes, gross margin percentage,
and inflation rates, which have been considered in the preparation of these projected taxable profits.

STORES AND SPARES - net
2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Stores 4,520 4,761
Spares . 318,003 444,961

322,523 449,722

Less: Provision for slow moving spares . (83,833) (70,493)

238,690 379,229

Provision for slow moving spares

Opening balance 70,493 168,489
Provision made during the year 15,540 55,826
Write off against provision . (2,200) (153,822)

Closing balance 83,833 70,493

During the year the Company has recognised provision against certain items of spares from which further economic
benefits are no longer expected to arise, or on the basis of a time based criteria, have been identified as slow
moving spares. Further, the Company has written off spares which have been scrapped during the current year
due to recent upgradation and optimisation of it's manufacturing facilities.

Items written off directly during the year amounted to Rs 104.860 million.

This includes spares in transit amounting to Rs 5.187 million (2016: Rs 1.999 million).
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STOCK IN TRADE - net

2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Raw and packing materials . 5,747,841 6,992,580
Work-in-process 107,962 124,732
Finished goods 386,779 209,516

6,242,582 7,326,828

Less: Provision for obsolete stocks . (38,001) (53,641)
6,204,581 7,273,187

Provision for obsolete stocks

Opening balance 53,641 43,917
Provision made during the year 18,256 58,544
Write off against provision (33,896) (48,820)
Closing balance 38,001 53,641

These include raw and packing material in transit aggregating Rs 181.608 million (2016: Rs 160.723 million).

TRADE DEBTS - net
2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Considered good - unsecured 36,458 1,523
Considered doubtful 2,780 2,780
39,238 4,303
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (2,780) (2,780)
36,458 1,523

ADVANCES

Considered good - unsecured

Advances to:

- Employees and executives 11.1&11.2 18,547 13,189

- Suppliers and contractors 16,613 20,089
35,160 33,278

The maximum aggregate balance of advances due from executives at the end of any month during the year was
Rs 14.094 million (2016: Rs 16.304 million). Further, amounts due from executives as at December 31, 2017
aggregated Rs 8.854 million (2016: Rs 10.575 million).

Advances to employees are given to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the expenses are
incurred.
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OTHER RECEIVABLES
2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Receivable from 'associated undertakings' . 302,576 203,407
Others 10,153 6,897
312,729 210,304

This amount represents outstanding balances from the following associated undertakings:

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Philip Morris Products S.A. 510 -
Philip Morris Services S.A. . 301,329 199,420
PMFTC Inc. 550
Philip Morris Asia Limited 335
Philip Morris Services India S.a.r.l. 705
Philip Morris Limited 868
PT Hanjaya Mandala Sampoerna TBK 1,529
302,576 203,407

This represents amount of tax paid by the Company on behalf of certain executives on secondment from the
group undertaking as referred to in note 29 to these financial statements.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined benefit plan

As stated in note 2.4.15, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent
employees. An actuarial valuation of the scheme is peformed every year with the latest actuarial valuation
performed as at December 31, 2017.

The fair value of the scheme's assets and the present value of the obligation under the scheme at the balance
sheet date in accordance with the latest actuarial report are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)
13.1.1 Net Asset

Fair value of plan assets 540,363 487,536
Present value of defined benefit obligation (443,315) (455,998)
97,048 31,538
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13.1.2

13.1.3

13.1.4

13.1.5

13.1.6

13.1.7

13.1.8 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:

Amounts charged to profit and loss account:

Current service cost
Net interest income
Plan curtailments / settlements

The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Purchases, redrying and related expenses
Manufacturing expenses

Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Movement in the asset recognised in the balance sheet:

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Net charge for the year

Contributions

Net remeasurements for the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance

Interest income

Contributions

Benefits paid

Remeasurement loss on plan assets
Closing balance

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

Opening balance

Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Plan curtailments / settlements
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligation
Closing balance

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
Expected rate of increase in salary level
Valuation discount rate

Debt instruments
Equity
Balances with banks

Note

13.1.3

211
21.2
22
23

13.1.3

2017

2016

(Rupees in thousand)

64,870 58,261
(5,395) (9,632)
(26,410) (39,151)
33,065 9,478
4,665 1,664
14,005 3,865
6,271 2,015
8,124 1,934
33,065 9,478
31,538 60,155
(33,065) (9,478)
73,491 73,300
25,084 (92,439)
97,048 31,538
487,536 596,507
44,205 57,168
73,491 73,300
(48,785) (236,532)
(16,084) (2,907)
540,363 487,536
455,998 536,352
64,870 58,261
38,810 47,536
(48,785) (236,532)
(26,410) (39,151)
(41,168) 89,532
443,315 455,998
10.30% 7.90%
11.00% 7.90%
439,988 315,711
45,596 60,534
54,779 111,291
540,363 487,536
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13.1.9 Actual gain on plan assets during the year ended December 31, 2017 was Rs 28.121 million (2016: Rs 54.261
million).

13.1.10 Expected contribution to defined benefit plan for the year ending December 31, 2018 is Rs 72.347 million (2017:
Rs 59.487 million).

13.1.11 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 15 years.
13.1.12 Mortality rates assumed were based on State Life Insurance Corporation 2001-2005 mortality tables.

13.1.13 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on present value of defined
benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumption assumption
(%) (Rupees in thousand)
Valuation discount rate 1% (384,666) 519,176
Expected rate of increase / decrease in salary level 1% 519,387 (383,452)

13.1.14 The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.

13.1.15 Through its defined benefit gratuity plan, the Fund is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if plan assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The Fund believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan
liabilities and the strength of the Company's support, the current investment strategy manages this risk adequately.

Inflation risk

The majority of the plan's benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities.
However, the Fund manages plan assets to offset inflationary impacts.

Life expectancy / withdrawal rate

The majority of the plan's obligations are to provide benefits on severance with the Company or on achieving
retirement. Any change in life expectancy / withdrawal rate would impact plan liabilities.
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13.2 Defined contribution plan 2017 2016
The charge for the year has been allocated as follows: (Rupees in thousand)
Purchases, redrying and related expenses 8,764 9,286
Manufacturing expenses 20,860 25,137
Distribution and marketing expenses 23,437 20,903
Administrative expenses 20,287 19,029

73,348 74,355

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks in current accounts
- Foreign currency 92,676 18,625
- Local currency
- Current accounts 37,392 25,158
- Deposit accounts 14.1 & 14.2 125,870 64,034
163,262 89,192
255,938 107,817
Cash in hand 162 276
256,100 108,093

14.1 Deposit accounts carry markup at fixed rate of 3.75% (2016: 3.75%) per annum, and fixed term deposits carry
an average markup rate of 5.35% per annum.

14.2 These include amount of Rs 18.861 million (2016: Rs 18.861 million) held by a commercial bank as security
against the guarantees (note 19.1) and funded facilities obtained from the bank in the normal course of business.

15. SHARE CAPITAL

15.1 Authorised capital
2017 2016 2017 2016
(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 Shares of Rs 10 each 12,000,000 12,000,000

15.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

15.2.1 Ordinary shares

2017 2016
(Number of shares)

5,541,429 5,541,429 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
fully paid in cash 55,414 55,414

47,722,912 47,722,912 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 477,229 477,229

8,316,000 8,316,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued
for consideration other than cash 83,160 83,160

61,580,341 61,580,341 615,803 615,803

15.2.2 Preference shares Preference shares of
Rs 10 each fully paid
1,046,400,000 1,046,400,000 in cash (notes 15.4 and 15.7) 10,464,000 10,464,000
11,079,803 11,079,803
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As at December 31, 2017, the number of ordinary shares of Rs 10 each held by Philip Morris Investments
B.V., (the parent company) and Philip Morris Brands S.a.r.l., both subsidiaries of Philip Morris International
Inc., were 47,819,356 and 12,316,061 respectively.

As at December 31, 2017, the preference shares of Rs 10 were held by the parent company and Philip Morris
Brands S.a.r.l, in the ratio of 79.52% and 20.48% respectively.

The conversion option is exercisable by the holder at any time after the 10th anniversary of the issue date but
not later than the 15th anniversary. At the 15th anniversary all the unconverted preference shares will mandatorily
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company. The preference shares shall be converted fully at the
conversion ratio defined in the terms of agreement.

The holders are entitled to a non-cumulative dividend subject to available distributable profits, as declared by
the Board or the Company from time to time, at a maximum rate of KIBOR + 1% spread on the face value of
the shares.

These preference shares have been treated as part of equity on the following basis:

The shares were issued under the provisions of section 86 of the Ordinance read with section 90 of
the Ordinance and the Companies Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2000.

The issue of the shares was duly approved by the members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on October 28, 2015.

The requirements of the Ordinance takes precedence over the requirements of the IFRSs.

The preference shareholders have the right to convert these shares into ordinary shares.

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on December 8, 2017, declared an interim dividend
on preference shares aggregating Rs 307.197 million and on ordinary shares at Rs 10 per share i.e. aggregating
Rs 615.803 million.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLAN

Details of equity settled share-based payments under 'Time-vested Share Plan' (note 2.4.17) in relation to the
Company are as follows:

Grant dates
February 6, 2014, February 5, 2015 &
February 4, 2016 & February 2, 2017
Share price at grant date (February 6, 2014) Rs 8,225 / share (US $ 78.11 / share)
Share price at grant date (February 5, 2015) Rs 8,340 / share (US $ 82.57 / share)
Share price at grant date (February 4, 2016) Rs 9,311 / share (US $ 89.10 / share)
Share price at grant date (February 2, 2017) Rs 10,319/ share (US $ 98.84 / share)

Number of shares outstanding
at the end of the year 7,649
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A reconciliation of movement in the number of shares can be summarised as follows:

Note 2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 6,969 6,329
Granted during the year 2,770 2,840
Vested / exercised during the year . (1,810) (1,760)
Forfeited during the year (280) (440)

Outstanding as at the end of the year 7,649 6,969

The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Purchase, redrying and related expenses 1,744 1,744
Manufacturing expenses 3,217 2,256
Distribution and marketing expenses 3,372 3,074
Administrative expenses 12,675 11,344

21,008 18,418

During the year ended December 31, 2017 shares granted on February 6, 2014 were fully vested along with
early vesting for certain employees from the respective grant dates.

An amount of Rs 22.552 million (US$ 214,782) was recharged by Philip Morris International Inc. New York during
the year, which was payable as at December 31, 2017 [2016: Rs 18.312 million (US$ 174,756)].

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)
Secured
Running finance under mark-up arrangements 17.1 & 33 1,338,557

The Company has arranged for running finance and other short term loan facilities to the extent of Rs 7,100
million (2016: Rs 7,350 million) from commercial banks. These facilities are available for various periods expiring
between April 30, 2018 and July 22, 2019 (2016: January 31, 2017 and July 22, 2017). The facilities are secured
by way of hypothecation of stock in trade of the Company and are carrying markup rates ranging from 6.37%
to 6.8% (2016: 6.5% to 6.6%) per annum.

The facilities for opening of letters of credits and letters of guarantees included in the aforementioned facilities
of Rs 7,100 million as at December 31, 2017 aggregated Rs 1,200 million and Rs 1,619.06 million respectively
of which the cumulative unutilised amount as at December 31, 2017 was Rs 2,749.495 million.
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Following are the changes in the short term borrowings (i.e. for which cashflows have been classified as financing

activities in the cashflow statement):

Balance as at January 1, 2017
Less: cash and cash equivalents

Loan received

Loan repaid

Exchange gain on foreign currency loan
Balance as at December 31, 2017

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Bills payable

Royalty payable to a related party
Accrued expenses

Tobacco development cess
Contractors' retention money
Advance from customers
Workers' welfare fund

Unpaid and unclaimed dividends
Others

Note 2017

(Rupees in
thousand)
1,338,557

(1,338,557)
27,097,000
(27,096,650)
(350)

2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

1,601,482 1,179,281
376,912 468,363
39,080 12,603
761,089 778,316
36,050 16,188
5,979 21,169
36,366 18,065
27,586 16,499
11,582 27,219
259,747 105,657

3,155,873 2,643,360

The amount due to group undertakings included in bills payable and royalty payable aggregated Rs 140.424

million (2016: Rs 297.908 million).

Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund Act, 2014 (SWWF Act) has been promulgated under which industrial establishments
having a total income exceeding Rs 0.5 million for the accounting period which began on or after December 31,
2013 are required to pay WWF to the Sindh Revenue Board at the rate of two percent of taxable income.

The management is of the view that the Company is already subject to levy of Federal WWF at the rate of two
percent on the income of the Company and as the authority to which the payment of WWF will be made is not
yet decided, the management has on prudent basis recorded provision based on Federal WWF.
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18.3

18.4

2017 2016
The movement of workers' profit participation fund is as follows: (Rupees in thousand)

Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Provision for the year 27,718 41,300
Less: Payments made during the year (27,718) (41,300)

Balance at the end of the year - -

The movement of tobacco development cess is as follows:

Balance as at the beginning of the year 16,188 27,976
Provision for the year 70,517 32,375
Less: Payments made during the year (50,655) (44,163)

Balance at the end of the year 36,050 16,188

18.4.1 Effective July 1, 1999, the Tobacco Development Cess had been levied on the purchases of tobacco leaf. The

Company has filed a constitutional petition in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the levy which is currently
pending for adjudication. Meanwhile, the Company is paying the said levy under protest. Pending outcome of
the matter, the Company has made the above provision in its books of account.

18.4.2 During the year, the Office of Excise, Taxation & Narcotics, Control Office Mardan (here-in after referred to as

‘the Department’), issued an order dated September 21, 2017 demanding the recovery of alleged short paid
Tobacco Development Cess (TDC) amounting to Rs 13.875 million in respect of the year ended December 31,
2016 along with a penalty amounting to Rs 3.468 million, because of an amendment in TDC rate introduced
during the year 2014.

The management is of the view that the Company has been paying TDC in accordance with the correspondence
of the Department, accordingly the TDC liability had been discharged in full and any incremental demand and
related penalty are not justified. However, as a matter of prudence, the aforementioned amount of Rs 13.875
million has been recorded in these financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on March 10, 2017 resolved that under article 124
of the Articles of Association of the Company, the unclaimed dividend liability amounting to Rs 27.217 million
be forfeited and therefore, the liability has been reversed in these financial statements.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantees

Indemnities given to banks for guarantees issued by them in the normal course of business totalling Rs 69.565

million (2016: Rs 69.565 million).
2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)
Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred 547 181,680
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19.3 Income tax related matters

(i)  While reviewing the income tax return of the Company for the tax year 2009, the Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenue (DCIR) through an order dated May 30, 2012 had disallowed certain deductions aggregating
Rs 256.444 million having an incremental tax impact of Rs 100.525 million. After rectification and appeal
orders, aggregate disallowances amounting to Rs 48.405 million are pending before the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) for further consideration.

While reviewing the income tax return of the Company for the tax year 2011, the DCIR through an order
dated May 28, 2013 had disallowed certain deductions aggregating Rs 235.705 million having an incremental
tax impact of Rs 100.927 million. After rectification and appeal orders, aggregate disallowances amounting
to Rs 105.280 million are pending before the FBR for further consideration.

While reviewing the income tax return of the Company for the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner
Inland Revenue through an order dated April 28, 2014 had disallowed certain deductions aggregating Rs
455.747 million having an incremental tax impact of Rs 77.829 million. At present, disallowances aggregating
Rs 95.685 million are pending FBR for further consideration, while disallowances amounting to Rs 149.442
million are pending before Appellate Tribunal.

While reviewing the income tax return of the Company for the tax year 2014, the DCIR through an order
dated June 28, 2016 had disallowed certain deductions aggregating Rs 131.086 million having an incremental
tax impact of Rs 39.326 million. At present, the Company’s appeal before CIR — Appeals is pending
adjudication.

The management is confident that the ultimate decision of the aforementioned matters will be decided in the
Company's favour and accordingly no provision on account of these matters has been made in these financial
statements.

The Additional Collector of Customs, Sales Tax and Central Excise (Adjudication), Rawalpindi had issued two
orders to the Company during calendar year 2003 on account of short payment of Central Excise Duty and Sales
Tax aggregating Rs 7.466 million and Rs 4.021 million respectively along with additional duty and penalty. After
the rejection of the Company’s appeals before the Federal Excise & Taxation Appellate Tribunal, Islamabad
during July 2007, the Company proceeded to file tax references before Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench,
the adjudication of which is pending to date.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the DCIR had issued an order dated September 29, 2014 and raised
demand on account of short paid Federal Excise Duty and sales tax amounting to Rs 2,320.757 million and Rs
964.591 million respectively. In addition, penalties amounting to Rs 116.038 million and Rs 48.229 million were
imposed on account of short payment of FED and Sales Tax respectively (referred to as 'Demand’). The Company
filed an appeal before the CIR Appeals who upheld the said Demand through an order dated December 15, 2014.

Subsequently, the Company filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the Tribunal) against
the order of CIR Appeals on January 13, 2015. The Company, on May 11, 2016, received a ruling in its favor
from the Tribunal, which has cancelled and set aside the Demand (i.e. referred to as 'Tribunal Order").

The FBR filed two reference applications before the High Court of Sindh during August 2016 (i.e. referred to
as ‘Reference Applications’) against the Tribunal Order, which are pending adjudications. The Company's
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management believes that the ultimate order in relation to the Reference Applications shall be in the Company’s
favour as the Demand had also been earlier set aside by the Tribunal Order.

The FBR issued two orders to the Company dated July 13, 2017 and one order dated October 16, 2017 and
demanded an amount of Rs 1,765.008 million for alleged evasion of FED and sales tax along with penalties
thereon which the Company believes to be unfounded. In this respect, the Company has filed appeals before
CIR — appeals, the order of which is awaiting.

The management believes that the Company has sufficient documentary evidence to prove that it has discharged
payment of all due duties and taxes in a timely manner and as such, ultimate decision in the appeal process
will be in its favour. Accordingly, a provision has not been recognised in these financial statements.

The FBR issued three orders to the Company dated December 8, 2017 alleging non-payment of duty on sale
of cigarettes by over declaring closing stock reported in the sales tax returns for the months of June 2016,
December 2016 and June 2017. Through these orders, demand of Rs 1,698.154 million was raised for alleged
evasion of excise duty. These orders were rectified on December 29, 2017 and the aggregate demand was
revised to Rs 19.205 million. On January 12, 2018, the Company has filed appeals against the orders before
CIR — Appeals and has also obtained stay thereagainst by making payment equal to 15% of the aforementioned
demand amounting to Rs 2.881 million.

The management believes that the Company has sufficient documentary evidence to prove that it has discharged
payment of all due duties and taxes in a timely manner and as such, ultimate decision in the appeal process
will be in its favour. Accordingly, a provision has not been recognised in these financial statements.

TURNOVER - net Note 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Gross turnover 30,143,938 40,343,161

Less: Trade discount 933,478 809,881
Sales tax 4,278,774 6,152,675
Excise duty 10,965,161 19,167,267

16,177,413 26,129,823

COST OF SALES 13,966,525 14,213,338

Raw material consumed
Opening stock 6,992,580 7,934,418
Purchases, redrying and related expenses . 5,562,926 4,762,979

12,555,506 12,697,397

Closing stock (5,747,841) (6,992,580)

6,807,665 5,704,817

Government levies 109,768 58,620
Manufacturing expenses . 2,135,314 2,186,531

Balance Carried forward 9,052,747 7,949,968
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211

21.2

Balance brought forward

Work in process
Opening stock
Closing stock
Sale of waste

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods

Opening stock

Finished goods purchased
Closing stock

Purchases, redrying and related expenses
Raw and packing material

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares consumed

Fuel and power

Rent, rates and taxes

Freight and stacking

Postage, telephone and stationery
Depreciation

Amortisation

Repair and maintenance
Travelling and vehicle expenses
Professional charges

Fumigation and pesticide expenses
Security charges

Other expenses

Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares consumed

Fuel and power

Rent, rates and taxes

Cartage

Postage, telephone and stationery
Depreciation

Amortisation

Travelling and vehicle expenses
Security charges

Other expenses

Note

13,16 & 24.2

3.11
4.1

13,16 & 24.2

311
4.1

2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)
9,052,747 7,949,968
124,732 74,011
(107,962) (124,732)
(3,.979) (10,995)
12,791 (61,716)
9,065,538 7,888,252
209,516 503,983
- 9,687
(386,779) (209,516)
(177,263) 304,154
8,888,275 8,192,406
4,878,678 4,070,369
265,337 270,842
30,083 33,005
45,893 38,726
8,428 31,972
89,765 77,154
8,218 7,299
66,026 67,507

49 -
23,379 27,751
20,575 25,974
180 304
32,006 33,410
83,384 69,298
10,925 9,368
684,248 692,610
5,562,926 4,762,979
579,443 670,146
378,698 403,225
185,961 200,542
2,640 2,417
35,216 66,685
10,262 11,272
774,021 589,533
1,615 1,667
88,936 91,051
66,621 100,303
11,901 49,690
2,135,314 2,186,531
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2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)
DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Selling expenses

Freight expense

Rent, rates and taxes

Postage, telephone and stationery
Depreciation

Amortisation

Travelling and vehicle expenses
Royalty

Repair and maintenance

Security charges

Other expenses

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Postage, telephone and stationery
Travelling and vehicle expenses
Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Utilities

Fee and subscription

Insurance

Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Amortisation

Security charges

Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee
Review of half yearly financial statements

Taxation and other services

Out of pocket expenses

13,16 & 24.2 1,013,621
1,167,250
151,423
54,546
22,069
179,811
4,777
145,291
61,380
37,465
43,504
45,521

630,193
1,617,369
165,623
61,466
22,974
114,958
1,407
136,112
46,988
36,914
50,286
57,568

2,926,658

2,941,858

13,16 & 24.2 661,036
186,855
21,272
110,372
57,963
93,019
20,911
10,705
50,095
6,254
80,172
6,842
47,786
1,955

613,149
171,270
27,354
104,141
78,435
55,024
21,406
8,167
50,062
17,178
124,746
8,227
53,426
19,897

1,355,237

1,352,482

2,450
1,055
2,328

2,760
1,055
12,599

5,833
421

16,414
764

6,254

17,178
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2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)
OTHER EXPENSES

Exchange loss - net 30,996 7,337
Employee separation costs 79,152 619,018
Property, plant and equipment written off 105,876 5,246
Impairment charge on items of
property, plant and equipment 83,765 60,644
Capital work-in-progress written off 9,393 -
Workers' welfare fund 11,087 16,499
Workers' profit participation fund 27,718 41,300
Intangibles written off 1,263 -
Miscellaneous expenses 47,198 33,437
396,448 783,481

This includes net unrealised exchange loss amounting to Rs 41.551 million (2016: Rs 42.508 million) arising
from 'trade and other payables'.

As part of a strategic review to optimise process efficiencies and operational effectiveness and to best position
the Company for strong and viable future growth, the management of the Company continues to reorganise its
various functions / operations. This overall reorganisation has resulted in redundancies of permanent employees
across different functions.

OTHER INCOME 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Income from financial assets:

® Profit on deposit accounts 15,220 6,147

@ Others . 64,531 132,790
79,751 138,937

Income from assets other than financial assets:
@ Profit on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment 85,459 50,543
165,210 189,480

These mainly include income arising on liabilities written back no longer considered payable and sale of scrap.

FINANCE COST AND BANK CHARGES
Note 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Mark-up on short term borrowings 26.1 63,076 219,831
Exchange gain on foreign currency loan 26.2 (350) (12,900)
Loss on foreign currency swap derivatives 26.3 5,200 122,025
Bank commission and other charges 20,876 33,747

88,802 362,703
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26.1 The mark-up on short term borrowings includes mark-up aggregating Rs 3.197 million (2016: Rs 24.605 million)
on the loans from an associated undertaking.

26.2 This represents realised exchange gain amounting to Rs 0.35 million (2016: Rs 12.9 million) on foreign currency
short term borrowings from an associated undertaking.

26.3 This represents realised loss on foreign currency swap derivatives on foreign currency short term borrowings
from an associated undertaking.
Note 2017 2016

27 TAXATION (Rupees in thousand)

Current - for the year 27.3 130,061 70,930
- for prior years 72,508 (23,678)
202,569 47,252

Deferred 7.1 82,738 147,479
285,307 194,731

27.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit before tax 476,315 769,888
Effective tax rate 27.2 30% 30.07%
Tax on accounting profit 142,895 231,505
Tax effect of:
@ gain not subject to tax (4,843) -
® expense that are not allowed in determining

taxable income - 4,238
o effect of change in tax rate (23,546) 16,867
® income assessed under Final Tax Regime (41,395) (9,401)
® tax credit for investments u/s 65B of the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (8,702) (166,933)
® minimum tax 144,942 142,133
@ worker's welfare fund (4,950) -
® others 8,398 -

212,799 218,409

Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior periods 72,508 (23,678)
Tax expense for the year 285,307 194,731

27.2 The applicable income tax rate was reduced from 31% to 30% during the year on account of the changes made
to Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 via the Finance Act, 2017. Further, a credit of Nil (2016: 3%) has been applied
on the aforementioned rates for the purpose of calculation of effective tax rates.
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This represents current tax expense relating to profit and loss account. The break-up of tax expense recognised

in these financial statements is as follows: Note 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)
Current tax charge / (reversal) recongnised in:
Profit and loss account 130,061 70,930
Other comprehensive income - remeasurement
expense relating to staff retirement benefits 7,525 (56,348)
Statement of changes in equity - transaction
cost on issuance of of preference shares (14,582)

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic (loss) / earnings per share
Profit for the year after taxation 191,008 575,157
Less: transaction cost on issuance

of preference shares - net of tax (33,911)
Less: dividend on non-cumulative

preference shares paid during the year (307,197)

(Loss) / Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (116,189) 541,246

(No. of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares . 61,580,341 61,580,341

(Rupees)
(Loss) / Earnings per share - basic (1.89) 8.79

The 1,046,400,000 preference shares (note 15) are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
because they are antidilutive for both the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. These
preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year is as follows:

Chief Executive Executives Directors Executives Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Remuneration - - 642,829 580,854 642,829 580,854
House rent - 289,251 261,384 289,251 261,774
Bonus - - 152,339 87,888 152,339 87,888
Retirement benefits - - - - 106,798 89,428 106,798 89,428
Utilities - 91 - 101 64,305 58,085 64,305 58,277
Others 2,034 2,218 1,293 1,682 192,296 119,092 195,623 122,992

2,034 2,309 1,293 2,173 1,447,818 1,196,731 1,451,145 1,201,213
Number of persons 1 2 1 2 499 489 501 493

In addition, the chief executive, executive directors and certain executives are provided with free use of the
Company maintained cars and accommodation facilities.
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Directors' fee aggregating Rs 3.319 million (2016: Rs 3.217 million) in respect of independent directors and non-
executive directors of the Company have been charged during the year.

The Company considers its chief executive and executive directors as members of key management personnel.

The benefits available to certain executives recognised by the Company in the expenses during the year on
account of share-based payment plan aggregate Rs 21.008 million (2016: Rs 18.418 million).

Certain executives are on secondment from a group undertaking and no remuneration is charged to the Company
in respect of those executives.

In accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance, employees whose salary for the year exceed Rs 0.5
million have been considered 'Executives' for the purpose of these financial statements.

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

Related parties comprise of Philip Morris Investments B.V. (the parent company) and Philip Morris Brands S.a.r.l.,
related group undertakings, subsidiary company Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited, staff
retirement funds and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties, other than remuneration
and benefits to key management personnel under the terms of their employment as disclosed in note 29, are
as follows:

Nature of transactions 2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

Associated Sale of goods 2,365,158 314,908

undertakings Sale of plant and machinery 5,855 -
Purchase of goods 226,140 270,475
Purchase of plant and machinery 2,290 37,596
Services procured 35,967 413
Loans received 2,097,000 11,532,400
Loans repaid / adjusted 2,096,650 18,862,500
Mark-up on short term borrowings 3,197 24,605
Royalty charges 61,380 46,988
Share based payment recharge 22,552 18,312

Subsidiary Expenses borne by the Company 186 143

Staff retirement Expense in relation to gratuity fund 7,981 101,917
plans Expense in relation to provident fund 73,348 74,355

The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2017 is included in notes 12.1, 13.1, 16.5 and
18.1. These are to be settled in the ordinary course of business.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Against the installed manufacturing capacity of 40,262 million (2016: 50,717 million) cigarette sticks, the manned
manufacturing capacity is 17,963 million cigarette sticks (2016: 26,286 million sticks). Actual production was 10,634
million (2016: 12,274 million) cigarette sticks, sufficient to meet the demand.




Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements (continued)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2017 2016
(Rupees in thousand)

Profit before taxation 476,315 769,888

Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1 1,100,030 896,744
Property, plant and equipment written off 105,876 5,246
Impairment charge on items of property, plant and equipment 83,765 60,644
Capital work-in-progress written off 9,393 -
Intangibles written off 1,263 -
Amortisation 13,283 11,301
Provision for slow moving spares 15,540 55,826
Provision for obsolete stocks 18,256 58,544
Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based payment plan 21,008 18,418
Gratuity expense 33,065 9,478
Liabilities written back (46,421) (62,807)
Unrealised exchange loss 41,551 42,508
Exchange (gain) on foreign currency loans (350) (12,900)
Profit on deposit accounts (15,220) (6,147)
Profit on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment (85,459) (50,543)
Consumption of capital spares 7,424 -
Finance cost 68,276 341,856
Working capital changes . 1,472,548 1,287,800
3,320,143 3,425,856

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares 124,999 56,617
Stock in trade 1,050,350 1,136,764
Trade debts (34,935) 94,405
Advances (1,882) 19,682
Prepayments 29,113 122,929
Other receivables (102,425) (194,972)
1,065,220 1,235,425

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 510,468 (395,434)

Sales tax and excise duty payable (103,140) 447,809
1,472,548 1,287,800

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 256,100 108,093
Less: Amount held as security (18,861) (18,861)
Short term borrowings - (1,338,557)

237,239 (1,249,325)




Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to certain financial risks. Such financial risks emanate from various factors
that include, but are not limited to, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company'’s financial performance. Risks measured and managed by the Company are explained below:

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market prices of instruments due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,
changes in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of instruments and liquidity in the
market. The Company manages the market risk by monitoring exposure on financial instruments and by
following internal risk management policies.

Market risk comprise of three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.
(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

e Fair value risk - Presently, fair value risk to the Company arises from instruments which are based
on fixed interest rates. As at December 31, 2017, the Company did not have any fixed rate instrument.

Future cash flow risk - Presently, future cash flow risk to the Company arises from 'running finance
under mark-up arrangements' which are based on floating interest rates (i.e. KIBOR based). As at
December 31, 2017, had there been increase / decrease of 50 basis points in KIBOR with all other
variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year then ended would have been lower / higher
by Rs Nil (2016: Rs 4.605 million) mainly as a result of finance cost.

(b) Currency risk

Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign
currencies. The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars, Euro and UK Pound
in the form of other receivables (note 12), bank balances (note 14), trade and other payables (note 18)
and accrued markup on short term borrowings.

As at December 31, 2017, had the Company's functional currency strengthened / weakened by 5%
against US Dollar, Euro and UK Pound, with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for
the year then ended would have been higher / lower by Rs 7.213 million (2016: Rs 10.356 million) mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses.
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(c) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company does not have financial
instruments dependent on market prices.

(ii) Credit risk and its concentration

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties
fail completely to perform as contracted. The Company enters into financial contracts in accordance with the
internal risk management policies which mainly include incurring of sales on an advance payment basis and
holding of balances with reputable banks of the country. Out of the total financial assets as set out in note
34.3, those that are subject to credit risk aggregated Rs 650.950 million as at December 31, 2017 (2016:
Rs 356.326 million). The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Company's financial assets as
at December 31, 2017:

Long term deposits are held with parties which have long association with the Company and have a good
credit history.

Credit limits are assigned to the Company's customers on a case to case basis and such limits are
regularly monitored, accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

Amounts aggregating Rs 302.576 million (2016: Rs 203.407 million) are receivable from group companies
whereby credit exposure and the corresponding risk associated with recoverability is considered minimal.

Amounts aggregating Rs 36.458 million (2016: Rs 1.523 million) is receivable from a customer whereby
credit exposure and the corresponding risk associated with recoverability is considered minimal.

The banks with which balances are held carry at least a credit rating of 'A-' which represents high credit quality.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic and industry factors similarly affect the group
of counter parties whose aggregated credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit
exposure. The Company's financial assets are broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit worthy parties thereby mitigating any significant concentration risk. Therefore, the Company
believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Company's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial liabilities when due. Accordingly, the Company maintains sufficient
cash and also makes availability of funding through credit facilities.
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The analysis below summarises the Company's financial liabilities (based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows) into relevant maturity group on the remaining period as at the balance sheet date:

Note 2017 2016

(Maturity within one year)
(Rupees in thousand)

Short term borrowings - 1,338,557
Trade and other payables 3,055,871 2,585,284
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 33 7,249

3,055,904 3,931,090

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying
value and the fair value estimates.

As at December 31, 2017, the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair values
due to the fact that most of the financial assets and liabilities are of short term nature.

Financial instruments by category
2017 2016

(Rupees in thousand)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Long term deposits 45,825 36,682
Trade debts 36,458 1,523
Other receivables 312,729 210,304
Cash and bank balances 256,100 108,093

651,112 356,602

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortised cost

Short term borrowings - 1,338,557

Trade and other payables 3,055,871 2,585,284

Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings 33 7,249
3,055,904 3,931,090

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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DETAILS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT DISPOSED OFF

The following operating property, plant and equipment having net book value of more than Rs 50,000, either
individually or in aggregate, were disposed off during the year:

Category Original Accumulated Book Disposal Mode of Particulars of buyers
cost  depreciation value proceeds disposal

Freehold land - 127 Negotiated Ishfag Ahmad
5,149 - 5,149 8,336  ----do---- Ishfag Ahmad
5,276 - 5,276 9,500  ----do---- Ishfag Ahmad
3,168 - 3,168 30,500  ----do---- Gohar Rahman
Building on
freehold land 4,703 (634) 4,069 1,300 Negotiated Ameer-ul-Mulk
131 3) 128 141 ----do---- Faqgir Muhammad
1,577 (360) 1,217 1,349  ----do---- Faqir Muhammad
1,030 (326) 704 781  ----do---- Fagir Muhammad
401 (186) 215 238  ----do---- Fagir Muhammad
251 (72) 179 199  ----do---- Fagir Muhammad
288 (134) 154 171 ----do---- Faqgir Muhammad
139 (48) 91 390 ----do---- Ishfag Ahmad
1,652 (557) 1,095 4,651  ----do---- Ishfaqg Ahmad
547 (82) 465 1541  ----do---- Ishfag Ahmad
101 (24) 77 164  ----do---- Ishfaq Ahmad
4,477 (813) 3,664 11,509 ----d0o---- Abdul Qudoos
12,020 (4,525) 7,495 30,900  ----do---- Abdul Qudoos

Vehicles 1,673 (1,338) 335 585  Negotiated M Younus Ismail
1,010 (619) 391 750  Insurance claim Century Insurance Co
513 (411) 102 430  ----do---- Century Insurance Co
1,538 (1,148) 390 1,100 ----d0---- Century Insurance Co
1,538 (923) 615 1,300  ----do---- Century Insurance Co
574 (459) 115 474  ----do---- New Hampshire Insurance Co
990 (700) 290 495  Company Policy = Hammad Latif
1,507 (1,025) 482 754  ----do---- Naeem Yousaf
990 (713) 277 495  ----do---- Mohsin Sardar
1,673 (1,204) 469 836  ----do---- Talha Tahir
1,673 (1,204) 469 836  ----do---- Adnan Khalid
1,039 (355) 684 831  ----do---- Syed Muhammad Raza Abbas
2,058 (1,646) 412 720  ----do---- Muhammad Sajjad Muzaffar
2,058 (1,646) 412 720  ----do---- Khanzada Temur Khan
2,058 (1,646) 412 720  ----do---- Abdul Rasheed
930 (744) 186 326  ----do---- Farhad Siddique
990 (752) 238 495  ----do---- Hamza Sajid Malik
2,392 (1,722) 670 1,196  ----do---- Muhammad Zeeshan
2,392 (1,658) 734 1,196  ----do---- Muhammad Asad
2,028 (1,622) 406 686  ----do---- Zaid Bin Zikria
990 (726) 264 495  ----do---- Zia Ahmed Karim
1,039 (471) 568 823  ----do---- Arham Ahmed Aswat
1,990 (1,592) 398 673  ----do---- Farhan Ahmed
990 (739) 251 347  ----do---- Malick Muhammad Jahangir Masood
990 (792) 198 347  ----do---- Khan Khagan Ahmed
990 (792) 198 347  ----do---- Saad Khaleel
990 (792) 198 347  ----do---- Rehma Shahab
990 (792) 198 347  ----do---- Rashid Rahim

79,630 (35,995) 43,635 129,259
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PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The following information is based on the financial statements of the Fund as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
(Un-audited) (Audited)

(Rupees in thousand)
Size of the Fund - Total Assets 672,189 703,797
Cost of investments made 515,255 353,291
Percentage of investments made 88.39% 89.20%
Fair value of investments 594,145 627,822

The break-up of fair value of investments is:

2017 2016
(Rs in '000) (Percentage) (Rs in '000) (Percentage)

Shares in listed companies 72,265 12% 101,155 16%
Debt securities 448,343 76% 282,804 45%
Bank balances 73,537 12% 243,863 39%

594,145 100% 627,822 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total average number of employees during the year and as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 respectively

are as follows: 2017 2016
Number of employees

Number of employees as at December 31 1,079

Average number of employees during the year 1,415

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to December 31, 2017, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 15, 2018 proposed final
dividend of Rs. 5 per ordinary share amounting to Rs. 307.902 and Rs. 0.42 per preference share amounting to
Rs. 439.488, for the year ended December 31, 2017 for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on April 26, 2018. The ordinary and preference dividends will be accounted for in the financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2018.
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DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on March 15, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

KAMRAN Y. MIRZA ALEXANDER REISCH ANTON STANKOV
Karachi: March 15, 2018 Chairman Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Auditors' Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited as at December
31, 2017 and the related profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with
the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare
and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free
of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that-

(@) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984;

in our opinion-

0] the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied; and

no business was conducted, no investments were made or expenditure incurred during the year;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance
sheet, profit and loss account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and,
give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2017 and its results,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended; and

in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: March 28, 2018 Audit Engagement Partner: Khurshid Hasan




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Balance Sheet

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

Rupees

ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital
5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs 10 each 50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 1,030 1,030

Accumulated loss

LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A b

ANTON STANKOV FAIZA KAPADIA RAFFAY
Karachi: March 9, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Profit & Loss Account

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees

Turnover

Expenses

Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

The annexed notes from 1 to 5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A b

ANTON STANKOV FAIZA KAPADIA RAFFAY
Karachi: March 9, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Statement Of Changes In Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Issued, Accumulated Total
subscribed & (loss)
paid-up capital

Rupees

Balance as at January 1, 2016 (1,030)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
ended December 31, 2016

Balance as at December 31, 2016

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
ended December 31, 2017

Balance as at December 31, 2017

The annexed notes from 1 to 5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A il

ANTON STANKOV FAIZA KAPADIA RAFFAY
Karachi: March 9, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
Rupees

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A il

ANTON STANKOV FAIZA KAPADIA RAFFAY
Karachi: March 9, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 14,
1955 as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The principal
activity of the Company is the manufacturing and sale of cigarettes and tobacco. Its registered office is situated
at 19th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City, HC - 3, Block 4, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited (the Holding Company). Philip
Morris International Inc. is the ultimate parent company.

The purpose of the Company is to provide support to the Holding Company for complying with the tobacco
production requirements. At present the Holding Company has sufficient manufacturing facilities to meet the
tobacco production requirements, therefore, the Company is not in operation.

The expenditure of the Company for the year which were restricted to the corporate filing and audit fees have
been borne by the Holding Company.

The Holding Company has confirmed to the Company through its letter dated January 12, 2017, that the Holding
Company intends to continue to provide financial support to the company to enable it to continue as a 'going concern'
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. As per the requirements of circular No. CLD/CCD/PR(11)/2017 dated July
20, 2017 and circular No. 23 of 2017 dated October 4, 2017 issued by the SECP, companies the financial year
of which closes on or before December 31, 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Accordingly, approved accounting
standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Ordinance, provisions of and directives issued under the
Ordinance. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Ordinance prevail.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2016 2017 2016

Number of shares Authorised share capital Rupees

5,000,000 5,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully
paid in cash




Laksonpremier Tobacco Company (Private) Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

All the shares are held by the Holding Company. Out of 103 shares, two shares are in the name of nominee
directors.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of the chief executive officer and director of the Company and the Holding Company.
The transactions carried out with related parties are as follows:

Expenses borne by the Holding Company

- Filing fees for corporate forms 85,525 22,025
- Audit fee 100,000 121,000

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorised for issue on March 9, 2018 by the board of directors of the Company.

A il

ANTON STANKOV FAIZA KAPADIA RAFFAY
Karachi: March 9, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director




S e L i L LI 62017 2L G i Sbie SV L E o B H L G
N By £t P sy o U b Floai §Gut b P 5L S Ui L AL e
-uﬁﬁ;ﬁjdldﬁt‘uz Jlﬁu]&dz l{rlbfl}"}”(f;z@ui@}d/&V}L}U’r@ﬂ#'J&Qﬂ}'d}@.}id&’u?fﬂ(u&}Kca(n"”‘

Uy A A L8N L G AL e S 3985 ot w2 A L Lt $F TS 2017
-ugz_nm,écﬁ{w&i?u:’wu:uy}éwéﬂ%:

ATl Kl B TS S ﬁt.fzi;;)}.??@g%,rc,g«frlgz,}ﬁé’w;*”/uwu“’%mf@mg‘” T
e e L G F B 201 TR 2 ot S AL

G ey
-ugL/u1,/@@’:@,@,14_;?‘@%,@%5 /Ju:mrtzé&ﬁizm 7‘)»2.,4&%/54—.5,@;}915‘5{

FLumg i S et LS U 3 S Kt s P27 (u/"uKﬁffrﬁdﬁumJﬁd/gwrt?'%u}{ﬂuf iy
ALY A

e SPE Ty

u’;&;'}):\-;—g}@' ‘j}—ﬁd-ﬂd%@'}—&b’
2018E4415 (41 E TR B




(HR&R) oS ouddliso 4ol  flug SLusl
e b A | 2o b1 L1 Vet P A A UNE S P e v

/r&{mbéufmiu“{ HR&R 3413} 55y I 201700
Serin g A

gkl 2

HueB 3

Ve e b HRER sl 201704

‘ S/ @l (I S S
-9¢}Mﬁsgus;/g:&r igwﬁ.;;vu.uz/:‘zgé_/‘ja,uL/ngg/dn/flg/véaéJé‘szig;&/CKJmi_J{

Sy (550513
e b G L /u»g;uw(m/_um.;luyu’!uu’tl/m,(aumde

gkl lf&:l\_!s.h).f.:.&
e S N L 6L ¥ (i NS S L 2017 531

srm3T
Dbl w7 20182531 smste B s Goake  B91Z Ao et P 5613 G i Pt AT D
-u:)/’/&z;p(,))LVLuf/)'QJGJd»g”d/d/}jjﬁfﬁﬁd/uULaM'fuccj.‘.}/b'/vlzJLnJigd/ﬁjgﬁjiﬁfTJ}g'/%g

2215550 Qe e SR, e Gt e e e £ imd 2017TJ G
-k

Oldgs 5 foriisumn
/,Ut/,(}u&lw'”/dwrwg WP /,l/u//d//’uuc)wm‘afu%d@%/m(wJ”/umJ‘u[
-Jc“./(}ﬂzggu:’/u;’/b/




PRV (O o VL ZMWGLKdﬁlaJwPf/’b"uﬁurﬂfﬂu'-anﬁf“uﬂf'égL(“)‘A.”)J;?/ﬂs.ﬁ"muu,;zizmwv

Sl ! a5

Lyl 6

S s
e ()J 2z e
S
sy’
BT
Sariiz

IS s B SURESIH i e  rt

M @3-" S)S—?
e G I T L T e U EL b S L QISR S Imiis = b L ST
L BN s Kt b L P G ANE F T

:é9//?QMLuﬁj'é&ﬂsbj{ﬂu;@%rL“:w'lézo1 7
oS zed 1

gEL e 2

gusdiy” .3

:LLJJ’&U;{MJJ%“U@/@UMMLS'QKu’ﬁlad/u;}f/’lﬁuﬁquglul-é_nﬁf-“u’ueu.lffz:&‘;ﬁi’u!wédv

SAbIE Ul LT
4 P () e
3 SRy’
o kL Gy

-&Tj)@}d/}b}'d/u}f‘?:b(]/b'{//’}bL'}"L//}la/:;u:f uyﬂylc‘:(}"‘:‘«ff




051998 5" Jg i b 5!
."ag/.‘«lJVJ’U/'PKW}%U}'K(lbﬁ"-c“./b.u'd/éul/"/,c,'/ﬂrgé(l}zﬁgé:(/K@)}/WUuﬂ)/’ﬁa/_’/)'j;/b-’/gj}«"z»@"Jd’{
_‘at’/g):@‘d/ﬁygé

_+t/J:@"Jyug£¢/g/;uvuuo/u}f 13 T s S S| g T(au’{

S5l L0 i et i o L
I%Ji)@mg&ufum;‘f(}yl.o;b‘u)‘b/k‘?f&ghd/ulzK:l./f(jdfc%L”%Ugc;@lg({d&c;d/&ﬁw//@,zéuf)u

(Fbr L Ut QWaiz e 5722016,4531) L IH6T6 36 eadug

(LU Qe s1£20162531) L1500 b gz

,ug(f‘?u);;-?d/'sﬂén.65%@&5@.&&9&5@99@@‘f"’/";un;ﬁf oy Mot

PP TL20% S F AL S e A LI(SARL) STl ke o

Ol et 5550 513 BT 35
d/;)ﬁt_fy/ﬁo/g;)/uMQVrﬁé 39 u:J%MJGxJ' Kﬂl ég/ﬂ.z Z:J}g//ljj)/ d'/}'&% f}:(201 7}26;‘/}"@» Jﬁ/}f
~an’lfui'b:fchzagi"g,(}’-’://’b”non-execu’[ive r?u‘fmc;o?u@fu!&&unﬁgvu’uﬁzo1 8

S 15§ 5y 513
PO IEE A vt ot s & ATEE Do s 20177 26 5wl JL&_ 1L 540

o I 15 ST S 5
sra S P g AR B At Ak dine U P J R e b AT
_G I LB A




el I SE K s =S 1 e o T il 3 lglju@g%lu@;;LriLgf“intd{
41 54) OHSAS 180015/ L419)1SO 1400122 ULLL & Sre 2 BB Ut L el dy e
A sl (616) s "Excellent” = oo § Ut o YA Ut S s SH £ L L ATy el (§F
FIipoiy el FinesLie AL FO P B)en2017 - (v (416)E, "Very Good” &irt- B 7
L FE ot 6 S Flore s 2 e\ o s\ Il T8, Fabsa UL K saSe ;A 1S L8

e USSP Sy e Bt Sl 2L S fe o 3L e i fleet e T

S5 42lo s o S Lg (Sl
et &L G AT L 6L LG S ey PGS Sy G
9/KJW¥J:@J{4'HQ&{+3/6%,&/%&%4155.:,gj“dr}uwj/,u/:’,;& J/“@;ﬂﬁuwf/?&f};dﬁ?j@
P IZL Siat baaeeod 5 D dS g S G e 31 LG F U un I S Uiut

-unﬁbgirzlzfqu,m

ddaslolf ol Sl o,ylal
B8O MELL Flutl F 2017l 51t 2 g A s e el 2 L P losmi AL &
E e B L Sy

S L e MBI S e e e KBl 8 S e s

Blasbefuke Ut L sl GBE UL S Sl e s Wi lpe b6 E10E -0
fug?./
U e oSG
SAIRIN PV e SIECRY P RN O
‘e b dUadut Il S e lom et B UL SUsd QU0
b ST L B e Vit b bt B By B8R S
(b B (e e S A S e L
f‘LJ}?/M Ve ddus s t/“«?%uuf.s!/’]/@(jt?@/c;u;é b }/Lf” 8190,1;1
o719 o tb L1 2 UI LB M5 anL (52017 531 b stb S U Lo U
fug‘jfj)uﬁuj):el;fuﬁuulﬁf&yl.QLPJL’ZZ’{;J/,V?’

[
¢

-




G L AIEE e S Ul 57 s UK e v P S Uy il O
cerenf$ECL eibe U UL SIE 2L GAP csz AL (GAP) Ly A B
A S S L b K e SIS i £ U Suoe n L iy 2dy o el
won £ U § e S ade e {6560 L Ul e b OB Ul # U2 U1 S8 G5 = b (AT
RO L s £ (KPK) 1555 2 v 2017 o e U S S ¥ iU A s £ Ui
ol S Ui bt g 2L Uy s Bl 1700 3 WK pLL, UF
SUsks ot 3720360 £ UMILNF T2 00 gl SH Tt gl D3 K e ot e 5 T
_‘Ld/lg,aﬁ;J‘z‘f"’é’l{J%};f_;UFg#"

:.SOOLIJ}Q?!/Lchurlf/véuﬁ}"’};y‘mu};{‘ﬁyu‘ /5%6?@6%'5}51;%;551&{7Vcd/’/
BACYS- NS RPN NI A SE) S

Ao ST PP 9232 & SIS QL & G UIL SH Sem i TB b gl e Gl Wit L5552
i P 3,000 LYSEIEAL S8 T e dnL Sine S Al

t'}qL?}(/§L"fi/<;Lii¢E.HPsycho-sociaIu.?"iu/cf‘;b»dl.%z d,gﬂuf 1$ /(48 /;uww l}o/‘L‘}‘:,;,éJ;,L, g
= 4 :
-L”flnfru—;ik{%};lu,%%fuﬁ/uwlul&@

e L1p L e tons Jlo Jin S E 1501 Lo Kot S S 3 J st & I S0P L B3 JES Uiy U019
Bl oGS 19300 S Snird L AL er ot s

&ljﬁ d)u'/’/‘yf&%’gé_uﬂ’/. :),,}‘:; u:.é} d/d:}ﬂ'uif U):,‘/;Jguﬁ Urzdls J_Tzﬂd’_//bl/b//&;{a’f; ot Jc«lfa';bu'l.?» L‘ud”'r
_LL(//G'{(/Lé/dzla/u%Uj{

(EHS&S) obwabs! g yo! yo el oz < JoLo

A S e S Ao I L KL s oK 3 AL 5 G lere P2 Sy 15
LolenZvbes p,ldf"ﬁdy e b G sl 2y ?ab??d/uiuag‘%,igj{zj.u‘&u;@ juu%&ﬁ;wﬁ;gyé
-§.u¢/2£i/éjzl;4:gk°'fl




VWS A A U

(u:000's47_y)

2,972,054 2017 L Bl 2

:59}04
T i *Slo A (S yaue
(615,803) AL 10 APt
(307,197) I8 10,294 APt

T ®Slo w0k
(307,902) PGB A
(439,488) I 042 AFEE
1,301,664 (M S Kilal S Ao Blin) (Shel Lgizxo

Ao e S35 (095
LGSRt eSS F Ry 2 A B 201 T e 5 S S i LT e B
LIS SA38 33 A 5L 2016 22 L e 1o A15.6 U

g“;g@./ﬁ;g)o//;vﬁr}(fu&mf%u”u;,/,/’u“u_%J.«,gm@?&5/K/mug};Tru:m‘uff’fuubuﬁju’”/;?J/“
_Q/?K/J‘?Jjufu,w

I TIGL el 2 s Sl e 6T B TS Bt ore b SE 13 En L i
LA ARl £2018 L Ut2017 e (L3S MU b T A e et SIS AR o
(NGOS)UsZ§.6 4 1y 21 %,wﬁ/g/wﬁ}’wr?,ﬁg L F LI U A L o3 Gl KL S

(st WA U e S P17




_gﬂ;uu’fﬂéwjﬂ%wf615.8o /uwu”’rué_&ff

Ll
S LT i § (IMC) S LIt el L o5 2017, 2924 /| Ve Lotk Susl s
-(ff@ﬁmm5&ux£ﬁui47’v£eHW-Dpug“,ﬁz;u‘{)wﬁb"f

Pl L H sy P 201802 f 2L UL (SRO)LGLZIBI6LlY 201752519 L eestis el
10%4 AL oyt S FI Sk = 201902 £150% (31 o e 7L-40%2r L b Ui S
LS FB0% b

> No Jos

A el S G fab sl L F bt PSS /J?L)JU:LESGZL):ULWJV;;l.‘v‘l};ﬂ/?’/?Lu:{UﬁZO1 7
ooy SIS U MBI - S R L S § oS S NS S L e 2 b
GGG AL F bk

) oo &SLi
A3y BIL bt SE A Bt L (P B 10 ()42100 il JU &l P7L L
_an,ﬁcdm"cqtg&uyfuﬁrumguut/ffmJf;,dqi&ﬂdcffi(u‘ﬂd/&%w ﬁ)}u‘é50 é.ul,’Lo

e w874 PP Ao Bl o 6 it

ulfJﬁbwd/ﬁ‘/JﬂdeL((f‘?uffj&%,/0.294 ) 2.98%0und Jo & b PEERL G L A5 T
e G A AL FTF 820,42 ()8.20% gl A5, TIL Ui

4Jf*évfuuuw"‘%u‘,u’*{)ge‘aﬂéwmwéu)vq;d%w Gt S P § 2017 S S,
_Lat‘/;;U;oﬂ‘;?l?fizﬂlbf:‘lu'ﬁufLé/d/lguq’/.d/gfﬁugjégwjbﬂﬂébfu‘“igﬂ'}ﬁéf‘}?;’;ﬁfgb'




AL i %7201 Tpamana 31

W STE G e AU n Y 2017530 e SAGA BT L CE o Dur b

eSS E S e

SUI S SeN

e it At Ll Jot L n Y 2017531

ey

201631

=3

201731

%

g

%

4..—’/0':1’

100.00

40,343

100.00

30,144

BT Ve

14.92

6,021

16.85

5,078

Blo L9020

2.81

1,133

1.87

565

1.91

770

1.58

476

o5 31 S @l

1.43

575

0.63

191

o 1w &lo

Y A W o ¥ o S50 25.28% 8 d L 2016l K 7 K ol 201701
S g Seleses i F oo S AL s 1S s s ULt £ L it Ca 3647)
AL A VK SR E S S e Pt S QWL i1y 1L e i1 b i
Lévu@wé%uu& 575 42016 v L ¥y A L bl e Ue o S AL 32 2201601y
_%wévﬂ}w&;uuhm U201 7t G

LFA LN 3L LEGL Fri e S E 0L et it £ 3L 7161220171802 By
Uv)‘;(l?ggcﬁé olu"":(lr;oﬁbi‘f’?;:;/ﬂa;gﬁ"dbita/:lgcéf«‘éc,,«...éﬂjd/»JJL«,(}?&”U:é:qufzdzgul{
-‘aafcf“Vc;%/dl;;Jatiﬁwu:fﬁj&

ﬁ;/mﬂ(Reserves)/’l})'z:d{uﬁ:blJ(ﬁ”ébf))ﬁég;‘upa(’3b»/ul/l;u“3ﬂg&w%évﬁ%uuﬁl‘1 91&)&/5/&&{
(701189 o s SEMELAEit L o307 sl PFL F 2017 dnfe TS




www.jamapunji.pk Jama
Punji

A0l (5] ddorans (5 4l s

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

Key features:

E2 Licensed Entities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator
' (based on live feed from KSE)

# Jamapunji games”* E5 Knowledge center
. o Risk profiler*

l =
B Texcreditca r.:ulat?r By Financial calculator
9 Company Verification ﬂs Subscription to Alerts (event
Insurance & Investment Checklist notufllcetmons. ;j,orpc):rate and
regulatory actions
=? FAQs Answered 9 ry S
@ Jamapuniji application for
mobile device
Z] Online Quizzes

» Scam meter*

 £] L
Jjamapuniji.pk @jamapunji_pk

. Jama Punji is an Investor
. Education Initlative of
.

+  Swecuries and Exchangs : :
Cafnmission of Fakists *Moblle apps are aiso available for downiosd for android and jos devices:
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PHILIP MORRIS (PAKISTAN) LIMITED %@5
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FORM OF PROXY

of

a member of Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited (the "Company")
hereby appoint

of

or failing him

of

who is / are also members of the Company to act as my / our proxy and to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at
the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company to be held on April 26, 2018 and at any adjournment
thereof

Signed this day of 2018

Folio CDC Participant CDC Account / No. of
No. ID No. Sub Account No. shares held

Signature over
Revenue Stamp

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature Signature

Name Name

CNIC No. CNIC No.

Address Address

Notes:

1. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the Company.

3. Ifaproxy is granted by a member who has deposited his / her shares in Central Depository Company of Pakistan,
the proxy must be accompanied with participant's ID number and CDC account / sub-account along with attested
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card ("CNIC") or the Passport of the beneficial owner. Representative
of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Share Registrar's Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited
18th Floor, The Harbour Froni, Dolmen City
HC-3, Block-4, Clifton Karachi-T5600

www.philipmorrispakistan.com.pk





